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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
Dear Shareholders,
It gives me immense pleasure to present to you the 46th Annual Report of the Company for the year 2016-17.
I am happy to inform that for the second consecutive year the Company has reported Net Prot besides
generating substantial Cash Prot. The Net prot for FY 2016-17 was Rs. 297 Crores and the Cash Prot was
Rs. 591 Crores. The Company recorded an increase of Rs. 438 Crores in its revenues during FY 2016-17 as
compared to the revenue earned in FY 2015-16. Operating revenue has also increased substantially from Rs
2,910 Crores in FY 2015-16 to Rs 3,330 Crores in FY 2016-17, representing an increase of 14.30 %.
The improvement in the nancial performance of the Company is attributed to substantial increase in capacity
due to induction of 6 new aircraft on dry lease in the eet, intense asset/resource utilization, greater operational
efciency, low ATF rates and favourable Forex trend.
The last one year has been marked by tremendous improvement in various spheres. There has been industrial
peace at all levels amidst growing trust between the Management and employees. Our greatest achievements
in the previous year have been the successful induction of six new B737-800 aircraft which helped the Airline to
increase capacity offered by about 33% over the previous year and obtaining IOSA certication emphasizing
the priority placed by the Company on the highest standards of Quality and Safety.
I wish to now present the Civil Aviation scenario particularly in India to give a brief background and
circumstances which had an impact on the results of the Company and the future outlook.
INDIAN CIVIL AVIATION SCENARIO
Financial year 2016-17 witnessed continued growth in the Indian aviation market at a rate that was faster than
elsewhere in the world. The Indian air market which is already the third largest in the world in terms of domestic
carriage is poised to become the third largest air market in FY 2020, international and domestic trafc taken
together.
The Indian domestic market surged ahead of the 100 million-mark to reach 104.16 Million passengers in FY
2016-17. This represented a staggering growth of 22% over the carriage of 85.56 Million passengers achieved
in FY 2015-16. The growth in the domestic market was largely driven by aggressive capacity induction and
pricing strategies adopted by the Indian carriers leveraging the low ATF rates. The Nation's low cost carriers, in
particular, inducted many more aircraft during the year to take their share of the domestic market close to 65%
of the domestic trafc.
Other factors that have contributed signicantly to the buoyancy seen in the market have been the several
initiatives taken by the Government to give a llip to domestic industry and trade such as 'Make in India' and
'Start up India' schemes. The Regional connectivity scheme (UDAN) that has been launched recently is
expected to provide fresh opportunities for further growth.
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The international trafc to and from India went well past the gure of 49.77 Million recorded in FY 2015-16 to
reach the level of 54.66 Million passengers in FY 2016-17, registering 9.8% growth year on year. The Indian
carriers' share of this amounted to about 20.6 Million as against 34 Million carried by foreign carriers. The share
of Indian carriers in percentage terms has increased marginally to 38% from 37% in FY 2015-16. The good
news is that Air India Express increased its share of this market from about 4.8% to 6.2%.
The most notable and encouraging feature of the international trafc to and from the Country has been the
increasing component of out-bound Indian tourists. As per the year book released by the Government Tourism
Department, the size of the Indian out-bound tourists market went up from 18.3 Million in 2014 to 20.3 Million in
2015. With greater market penetration by Indian and foreign low-cost carriers, the growth of this segment is
expected to rise above 11% registered in 2015. Since most rst time international travellers tend to travel to
countries that are closer to home, the increasing propensity of Indians to travel to international destinations is
likely to disproportionately benet the Region's low cost carriers such as Air India Express and for that reason
the market would merit even greater focus in the years ahead.
The phenomenon of increasing propensity for Indians to travel abroad, also assumes greater signicance in
the light of the sharp decline seen in the in-take of the Indian workforce by the Gulf countries. A leading Indian
daily had recently published a report conrming the Airline's worst fears of a signicant decline in the
movement of Indian workforce to the Gulf States. As per this report, there has been a steep decline of 33% in
the in-take of Indian workforce by the Gulf States – going down from about 7,58,700 in 2015 to merely about
5,07,300 in 2016. Saudi Arabia and UAE are reported to have accounted for more than 60% of the drop. The
drastic decline in the emigration numbers aggravated by large increase in capacity deployed on the India – Gulf
routes by the Indian LCCs including Air India Express had brought about a sharp decline in unit revenues and
passenger load factors on these routes for all the airlines engaged in these markets.
As the Gulf economies continue to struggle to come to terms with low fuel rates, the year ahead is likely to be an
even more challenging one to Air India Express which has about 90% of its capacities tied up to the Gulf routes.
The short to medium eet expansion plans announced by some of the Indian LCCs will contribute further to
making the operating environment much more difcult as slot constraints at the major Indian metros are likely
to drive signicant amount of the additional capacity on to direct international services from Tier II cities to
international destinations within the range of A 320 / B 737 types of aircraft. In this context, the decision taken by
the Airline in FY 2016-17, to engage the services of external experts to recommend the eet expansion and
network development plans that would best serve the interests of the Airline in the short, medium and long term
should act as a useful frame of reference to the Airline to chalk out its growth strategy to retain / grow its market
share. It is expected that the nal report of the consultants incorporating their specic recommendations in
terms of progressive eet size, focus markets, route strategy, etc. would be submitted shortly. The Airline
would thereafter take further action to develop its expansion plan.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Board has constituted a CSR Committee and laid down the CSR Policy with the objective of making
positive contribution to the society through high impact, sustainable programs. I am happy to inform that the
spend on CSR activities during FY 2016-17 was about Rs. 50 lakhs and that the amount of spend on this
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account would be much higher in FY 2017-18 considering the protability of the Company. A detailed report on
the CSR activities forms part of the Directors' Report.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
I take this opportunity to thank my colleagues on the Board for their valuable guidance. I would like to thank all
the employees of Air India Express Limited for the exemplary efforts taken by them displaying to all
stakeholders the strength and resilience of our team spirit in pursuit of excellence. I want to thank each one of
our employees for contributing their mite whether it be the employees in marketing, sales and other support
departments, the front-liners at the airports, the cabin crew, the pilots or the engineers, for having risen up to
the occasion and helping to uphold the image of Air India Express Limited.
On behalf of the Board, I seek your continued support, as always.

sd/(Rajiv Bansal)
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VISION
l

Become India's most efcient and preferred LCC on regional international routes and extending the
Airline's reach to other potential markets over the long term.

l

Constantly exceeding passenger expectations in terms of quality, convenience and comfort.

MISSION
l

Offer the best ight schedules at the most competitive fares having clients' needs at the core of all
corporate / strategic decisions.

l

Pay paramount attention to safety, punctuality and convenience of services.

l

Constantly embrace technological advancements to upgrade services, systems and processes and
increase value proposition to passengers, employees, travel partners, vendors and owners.

l

Benchmark work practices / methods against best in industry and achieve the greatest levels of
productivity from all assets.

l

Develop and maintain adequate pool of competent and motivated employees.

l

Grow and expand operations with focus on improving productivity & protability complementing the
parent company's operations.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
To
The Shareholders,
th

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 46 Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited
Statement of Accounts, Auditor's Report and the Report of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the
year ended 31 March 2017.
REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE
SUMMARISED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ( FY 2016-17):
Rupees in Crores
Operating Revenue
Operating Expenses
Operating Prot

3,330
2,765
565

Total Revenue
Total Expenses
Prot before taxation & Exceptional Items

3,356
3,059
297

Provision for Taxation
Net Prot

0
297

Less :Balance brought forward from previous years

(2,104)

Net Loss carried forward

(1,807)

Cash Prot for FY 2016-17

591

SUMMARISED PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE (FY 2016-17 Vs. FY 2015-16)
FY 2016-17

FY 2015-16

Variance (%)

11574

8730

33

Carriage (Million)

3.42

2.80

22

RPK (Million)

8786

7189

22

Load Factor (%)

75.9

82.3

(7.8)

Yield/RPK (Rs)

3.72

3.97

(6.3)

RASK (Rs.)

2.88

3.34

(13.8)

Flying Hours

94,055

70,385

34

ASK (Million)

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized Share Capital
As on 31 March 2017, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs.800 Crores divided into 8 Crores
Equity Shares of Rs.100 each.
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital
As on 31 March 2017, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital of the Company was Rs.780 Crores
divided into 7.8 Crores Equity Shares of Rs.100 each.
CHANGE OF NAME OF THE COMPANY
Effective 5 May 2017, the name of the Company was changed from Air India Charters Limited to Air India
Express Limited.
CHANGES IN THE SHARE CAPITAL, IF ANY
During the year there was no change in the paid up share capital of the Company.
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the year there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.
CREDIT RATING FOR THE COMPANY
During the year, the Company got the Credit rating done through an External Credit rating agency and the rating
obtained is A 3 + .
DIVIDEND
In terms of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 the dividend could not be considered due to accumulated
losses.
TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCTION AND PROTECTION FUND
Since there was no unpaid/unclaimed Dividend for the past years, the provisions of Section 125 of the
Companies Act, 2013 did not apply.
AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVES
In view of the accumulated losses, the Board of Directors have decided not to transfer any amount to reserves
during the year.
AIRCRAFT FINANCING
As on 31 March 2017, the position of foreign currency borrowing for Aircraft was as under:
Rupees in Crores
Total Loan due as on 1 April 2016
Less: Amount repaid during April 2016 to March 2017
Add: Exchange adjustments due to revision in rates of currencies
Balance as on 31 March 2017
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IMPLEMENTATION OF RESERVATION POLICY
The Reservation Policy has been implemented as per the Presidential Directives issued in the year 1975, along
with the revised Directives effective 1991 and 1996.
SC/ST/OBC – Number of employees as on 31 March 2017
Total No.
of
employees

Total No.
of SC
employees

% of SC
employees

Total No. of
ST
employees

% of ST
employees

Total No. of
OBC
employees

% of OBC
employees

926

147

15.87

53

5.72

246

26.57

IMPLEMENTATION OF OFFICIAL LANGUAGE
The Company is taking effective steps for the implementation of the provisions of the Ofcial Language Act and
Rules framed under the Act.
VIGILANCE
The Vigilance Department of the Company is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Organisation to
ensure that it is in accordance with laid down Rules / Regulations and Procedures, investigating deviations to
establish whether they are bonade / justied or malade, referring to Competent Authority / ies for appropriate
action if culpability is established, making recommendations for system and procedural improvements.
The Vigilance Department is guided by the agenda set by the Central Vigilance Commission and the key thrust
areas identied by them from time to time. Action is also ongoing for leveraging technology for ensuring
transparency in the functioning of the Company and its day-to-day dealings.
The Vigilance Department has been conducting periodical follow-ups with the concerned Departments for
speedy disposal of departmental enquiries.
COMPLIANCE WITH THE RTI ACT, 2005
As required under the provisions of section 4 of the Right To Information (RTI) Act 2005, the Company has
displayed essential information on its website under the head RTI. Management has also notied CPIO and the
Appellate Authority in compliance with the requirements of the RTI Act.
During the year, a total of 36 applications were received of which 33 were disposed off by providing requisite
information.
INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/JV/ASSOCIATE COMPANY
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
In terms of the provisions of Section 134(3)(l), no major changes have occurred which have affected the
nancial position of the Company between 31 March 2017 and the date of Board's Report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
A detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report is given separately.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As required under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013, meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company
were held during the Financial Year 2016-17 as detailed below:
Sr No.

Date of Meeting

Board Strength

No. of Directors Present

1

27 June 2016

3

3

2

31 August 2016

3

3

3

29 November 2016

3

3

4

21 March 2017

3

3

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
(i)

In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanations relating to material departures.

(ii)

The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the nancial year and of the prot or loss of the Company for that period.

(iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufcient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
(iv) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a 'going concern' basis.
(v)

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
According to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee comprised of 4 directors. The
Board has accepted the recommendations of the Audit Committee. The table sets out the composition of the
Committee:
Name of the Director

Position held in the Committee

Dr Shefali Juneja

Category of the Director

Chairperson

Government Director

Smt Puja Jindal
(ceased wef 8.04.2016)

Member

Government Director

Shri Ashwani Lohani

Member

Chairman (Nominee of AI)

Shri Vinod Hejmadi

Member

Nominee Director - AI

AUDITORS
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India has appointed M/s Kirtane & Pandit, Mumbai as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the nancial year 2016-17.
Management clarication/explanation to the qualications or adverse remarks in the Auditors' Report is
annexed to this Report.
COMMENTS OF COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
The Comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013
on the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 and replies to the Management are
annexed to this report.
SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Vijay Sonone &
Company, Practicing Company Secretaries, Mumbai, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the nancial year 201617.
The Secretarial Audit Report and Managements' Comments thereon for the nancial year ended 31 March
2017 are annexed to this report.
LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the provisions of the Section 186 are not applicable to the
Company.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(A) Conservation of energy and Technology absorption
The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
conservation of energy and technology absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities
undertaken by the Company during the year under review.
DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year.
SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS
During the year no signicant and material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as under, in compliance with
the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Rules made thereunder and the guidelines
formulated by the Department of Public Enterprises.
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Shri V Hejmadi
Dr. Shefali Juneja
Ms. Puja Jindal
Shri K Shyam Sundar

:
:
:
:

Chairman
Member
Member
Member / Convenor

On her cessation as a Director on the Board of the Company Ms. Puja Jindal ceased to be a member of the
CSR Committee effective 8 April 2016.
The Board in its meeting held on 27 June 2016 approved the CSR Policy and also a budget of Rs. 50 lakhs to
be spent on CSR activities during the nancial year 2016-17. Accordingly, the following CSR activities were
undertaken by the Company during the year 2016-17.
l

Sponsored education of 15 Students for Diploma in Geriatric Care course at Mental Health Action Trust
(MHAT), Kozhikode and Mitraniketan, Thiruvananthapuram , Kerala.

l

On 5 January 2017, Kerala State Palliative Care Day, Air India Express donated a Palliative Care Vehicle
along with medical equipment to the Primary Health Centre of Nedumbassery Gram Panchayat, Kochi,
Kerala.

l

Air India Express sponsored the construction of state of art sanitation block at Airport Junction on National
Highway, Nedumbassery, Kochi for use by general public.
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l

Support extended to improve the infrastructure and sanitation facilities at two lower primary village
schools, viz, Govt LPS, Thuruthisserry and Govt LPS Poikattussery in Nedumbassery Gram Panchayat,
Kochi.

l

Rs 14,41,000 (Fourteen lakh forty one thousand only) has been donated in the "Swach Bharath Kosh".

Considering the Net prots for the last two years, the Company is required to spend a signicant amount on
CSR activities during FY 2017-18. Some of the projects of the last year would be continued and other new
projects are under consideration of the CSR Committee.
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013
In line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary & trainees) are covered
under this policy.
During the year 2016-17, two complaints of sexual harassment had arisen. Out of the two, one complaint had
been duly disposed off and the second complaint is being dealt with by the ICC.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has complied with the requirements of Corporate Governance with the exception of appointment
of Independent Directors on the Board. This matter is being pursued with Air India / the Administrative Ministry.
A report on Corporate Governance is enclosed at Annexure A.
RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company is in the process of formulating the Risk Management Policy with the following objectives :
l

Provide an overview of the principles of Risk Management

l

Explain approach adopted by the Company for Risk Management

l

Dene the Organisational Structure for effective Risk Management

l

Develop a “risk” culture that encourages all employees to identify risks and associated opportunities and
to respond to them with effective actions

l

Identify, assess and manage existing and new risks in a planned and co-ordinated manner with minimum
disruption and cost, to protect and preserve Company's human, physical and nancial assets.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed to this report.
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DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE
As per Article 117 of the Articles of Association of the Company, all the Directors on the Board are appointed by
Air India Limited, our holding Company in consultation with the Government of India. Air India has requested
GOI to nominate at least two Independent Directors on the Board of Air India Express Limited and the
appointments are awaited.
DIRECTORs and KMPs
During the nancial year 2016-17 the following changes have occurred in the constitution of Directors of the
Company:
S.No

Name

Designation

Date of
appointment

Date of
cessation

Mode of
Cessation

1

Smt Puja Jindal

Director,
MOCA

22 March
2013

8 April 2016

Ceased to be
Director

Details of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company:
S.No

Name

Designation

Date of appointment

1

Shri K Shyam Sundar

CEO

27 March 2015

2

Shri M Manoharan

CFO

27 March 2015

3

Smt. Aditi Khandekar

Company Secretary

27 March 2015

During the nancial year 2016-17 there was no change in the KMPs of the Company.
In view of the exemption granted vide Notiﬁcation dated 5 June 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
information on the following points has not been given:
i.

Performance Evaluation of Board, its Committees and individuals.

ii.

Policy for selection and appointment of Directors and their remuneration.

iii.

Remuneration Policy - Remuneration to Executive Directors and Non Executive Directors.

iv.

Related party transactions.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The Board sincerely appreciates the Company's valued customers in India and abroad for using the services of
Air India Express and looks forward to their continued support and condence.
The Board also gratefully acknowledges the support and guidance received from Air India Ltd., Air India
Engineering Services Ltd., Air India Air Transport Services Ltd., Ministry of Civil Aviation and various Ministries
of the Government of India, to the Company's operations and development plans. The Board expresses their
grateful thanks also to the DGCA, Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditor, Internal Auditors, Airports Authority of India, other Govt.
Departments, airlines, agents, Indian Financial Institutions and banks including the EXIM bank of USA.

For & on behalf of the Board

Sd/(Rajiv Bansal)
Chairman

Place : New Delhi
Date : 22 September 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

1.

AIR INDIA EXPRESS OPERATIONS
Fleet Size
st

Air India Express completed the induction of 6 B 737-800 aircraft on dry lease during the year 2016. The 1
th
leased aircraft joined the eet on 22 March 2016 and the 6 aircraft joined the eet in November 2016. As a
result, as on 31 March 2017, the airline's eet strength increased from 17 to 23 B737-800 aircraft.
Operations
Air India Express began the Summer Schedule 2016 with 387 departures per week. By the end of the
Schedule the Airline inducted 5 more aircraft in its eet and the number of departures rose to 531 per week
as compared to 375 departures per week in the Summer 2015 Schedule.
Highlights of Summer 2016 schedule
With the induction of the 5 leased B737-800NG aircraft, the operations were strengthened through
increase in the frequency of ights on some of the existing routes and introduction of ights on new routes.
The notable highlights of Summer 2016 schedule were as under:
Mumbai - Dubai vv & Mumbai - Sharjah vv
Services from Mumbai were strengthened by introducing daily ights on Mumbai – Dubai and Mumbai Sharjah routes with effect from 7 April 2016.
Delhi – Dubai vv & Delhi – Abu Dhabi vv
The Airline restored operations to and from Delhi with the introduction of daily services on Delhi – Dubai
and Delhi - Abu Dhabi routes. These services commenced from 15 May 2016 and 16 May 2016
respectively.
Kochi – Kozhikode – Bahrain and Kozhikode – Doha
With effect from 1 June 2016, the Airline's daily operation on the Kochi – Kozhikode – Bahrain – Doha –
Kozhikode – Kochi route was restructured to provide for daily ights between Kochi and Bahrain via
Kozhikode and back and a separate daily service between Kozhikode and Doha. The ights were so
timed that passengers travelling between Kochi and Doha and vice versa continue to do so with
convenient connections offered in both directions at Kozhikode.

15

AIXL
Kozhikode – Dubai vv
Effective 1 June 2016, the frequency of ights between Kozhikode and Dubai was increased from daily to
twice daily.
Kozhikode – Kuwait vv
The frequency of ights on the above route was increased from thrice weekly to 5 ights per week. As a
result, the total ights from India to Kuwait increased from 6 to 8 ights per week effective 1 June 2016.
Passengers originating at or bound for Kochi are being provided convenient connections thrice weekly in
both directions over Kozhikode.
Tiruchirappalli - Sharjah vv
In addition to Dubai and Singapore, Tiruchirappalli was connected to Sharjah with the commencement of
a daily ight effective 15 September 2016.
Chandigarh - Sharjah vv
A thrice-weekly non-stop service was introduced between Chandigarh and Sharjah with effect from 15
September 2016. It had been originally proposed to operate to Dubai from Chandigarh. However, in view
of restrictions posed by bilateral entitlements and slot constraints at Dubai, the plan had to be modied
and Dubai was substituted with Sharjah.
Varanasi –Sharjah vv
The frequency of ights on this route was increased from thrice weekly to daily effective 14 September
2016.
Kochi – Dammam vv
In addition to a non-stop ight from Kozhikode and Mangalore, Kochi was also connected to Dammam by
introducing 3 weekly ights effective 21 May 2016. This ight had to be later withdrawn (effective 1 Jan
2017) due to poor loads in the winter months.
Chennai – Singapore vv
In addition to the daily ight on the Chennai – Tiruchirappalli – Singapore vv route, 5 more non-stop ights
were introduced between Chennai and Singapore effective 21 October 2016. The frequency of the nonstop Chennai – Singapore vv ights was later increased to daily effective 15 February 2017.
Thiruvananthapuram – Dubai vv
The frequency of ights on this route was increased to 6 ights per week from 5 weekly ights in Summer
2015. However, effective 1 February 2017, in view of bilateral restrictions and in order to accommodate Air
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India's plan to upgrade its services on Kochi – Dubai sector from A 320 to B 787, the frequency of ights
had to be reduced back to 5 ights / week.
Highlights of Winter 2016-17 schedule
Winter 2016-17 Schedule commenced on 23 October 2016. Shortly after the start of the winter Schedule,
the Airline inducted the 6th leased B737-800NG in November 2016.
The notable highlights of the Winter 2016 schedule were as under:
Kochi – Muscat vv
The frequency of ights was increased from 5 to 6 ights per week.
Thiruvanathapuram – Muscat vv
The frequency of ights was increased from 4 to 5 ights per week.
Kozhikode – Riyadh vv
Operations were launched to Riyadh as the Airline's second online point in Saudi Arabia. Kozhikode was
connected to Riyadh 4 times in a week effective 2 December 2016. The frequency was further increased
to 5 weekly ights in February 2017.
Kolkata – Singapore vv & Kolkata – Dhaka vv
Effective 20 November 2016, 4 weekly non-stop ights were introduced from Kolkata to Singapore and
th
Dhaka. These ights were introduced primarily to target 6 freedom trafc from Dhaka to Singapore and
vv.
Delhi – Dhaka vv
4 weekly ights were introduced between Delhi and Dhaka vv with effect from 17 February 2017. The
schedule of these ights was drawn up in such a way that the ights operating between Delhi and Dhaka
would connect to Air India’s long haul ights to destinations in UK & Europe in both directions.
Tiruchirappalli – Singapore vv
Effective 15 February 2017, Chennai – Tiruchirappalli – Singapore vv route was restructured to offer two
non-stop ights to Singapore one each from Chennai and Trichy respectively. This ensured that the Airline
continued to offer non-stop ights between Chennai and Singapore which had been commenced in
October 2016.
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The route-wise breakup of the ights operated by the Airline in 2016-17 Schedule was as under:
Summer
2016

Winter
2016

Flights/week

Flights/week

Sr.No.

Sector

01

India - Dubai

83

80*

02

India - Abu Dhabi

32

32

03

India - Sharjah

41

41

04

India - Muscat

19

21

05

India - Dammam

07

07

06

India - Bahrain

07

07

07

India - Doha

14

14

08

India - Al Ain - Ras Al Khaimah - India

02

02

09

India - Ras Al Khaimah - Al Ain - India

02

02

10

India - Salalah

02

02

11

India - Kuwait

05

05

12

India – Bahrain – Kuwait - India

03

03

13

India - Singapore

12

18

14

India - Riyadh

00

05

15

India - Dhaka

00

08

16

India - Kuala Lumpur

04

00

17

Domestic

29

17

TOTAL

262

264

*In view of bilateral as AI required seats.
Withdrawal of ﬂights
Chennai – Kuala Lumpur vv
The competition from Air Asia and Malaysian airlines on Chennai – Kuala Lumpur route and competition
from Malindo and Air Asia on Tiruchirappalli – Kuala Lumpur route continued to be intense. As a result, the
AI Express' yields came under extreme pressure. Despite achieving load factor of about 81%, the Airline
was unable to recover the operating costs on the route. Hence the Airline decided to discontinue
operations between Chennai and Kuala Lumpur with the close of the winter season demand from 15
February 2017.
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Kochi – Dammam vv
A direct non-stop ight thrice weekly commenced between Kochi & Dammam during Summer 2016.
However, in view of poor loads, this ight was combined with Kozhikode – Dammam vv to operate as
Kochi – Kozhikode – Dammam vv route. In spite of the measures taken to share the capacity offered on
the route with Kozhikode, the revenues / passenger loads from and to Kochi were not adequate to meet
the costs. In view of poor performance the Kochi – Dammam direct link was withdrawn. However,
convenient connections were provided (and even now are being provided) via Kozhikode for passengers
desirous of travelling between Kochi and Dammam and vice versa.
In view of bilateral entitlement restrictions and the need to release some seats to enable Air India to
upgrade the aircraft on the Kochi – Dubai route from A 320 aircraft to B 787 aircraft, AI Express had to
curtail some of its ights to Dubai effective 1 February 2017. Considering the commercials the ights
scheduled to depart on Tuesdays were cancelled as per details given below:
i)

Thiruvananthapuram – Dubai vv – The frequency was reduced from 6 ights per week to 5 per week.

ii)

Kochi – Dubai vv – The frequency of ights was reduced from daily to 6 per week.

iii)

Kozhikode – Dubai vv – The frequency of ights decreased from double daily to 13 ights per week.

The capacity released by cancelling Dubai ights was deployed to operate one additional ight each from
the above stations to Sharjah effective Summer 2017.
On Line Stations
As on 31 March 2017 the online stations were as under:
India:

Kozhikode, Kochi, Thiruvananthapuram, Mangalore, Chennai, Tiruchirapall, Mumbai, Pune,
Delhi, Amritsar, Chandigarh, Lucknow, Jaipur, Varanasi and Kolkata.

Foreign: Dubai, Abu Dhabi, Sharjah, Ras Al Khaimah, Al Ain, Muscat, Salalah, Bahrain, Doha, Kuwait,
Dammam, Singapore, Riyadh and Dhaka.
Capacity offered, PLF, Yields and Revenues
Air India Express has exceeded the performance during FY 2016-17 with respect to overall revenues and
capacity growth. This has been possible primarily owing to a signicant increase in the capacity offered
through phased induction of 6 more aircraft during the year and more intensive utilization of all the
aircraft in the Airline's eet.
The larger eet (effective eet strength in FY 2016-17 was about 21 aircraft) coupled with increased
aircraft utilization at the rate of 12.27 hours per aircraft / day (11.3 hours in FY 2015-16) helped the Airline
to achieve 94,055 ight hours, an increase of 34% over the previous nancial year.
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As a result, the capacity offered by the Airline in terms of ASK in FY 2016-17 increased by 33% from 8730
Million in FY 2015-16 to 11,574 Million.
The RPKs achieved by the Airline also increased signicantly to the extent of 22% from 7,189 Million in FY
2015-16 to 8,786 Million in FY 2016-17. Consequently, the passenger carriage on the Airline's services
also grew by 22% going up from 2.80 Million in FY 2015-16 to 3.42 Million.
Total revenues earned by the Airline increased by 14% from Rs. 2,950 Crores in FY 2015-16 to Rs. 3,356
Crores in FY 2016-17.
In spite of increase in RPKs and passenger carriage in absolute terms, the load factor declined by almost
8% from 82.3% to 75.9% in FY 2016-17. The unit yield also declined by 6% from Rs. 3.97 to Rs. 3.72 per
RPKM in FY 2016-17. The combined impact of decline in PLF and Yield drove the Revenue per ASK down
by nearly 14%, from Rs.3.34 to Rs.2.88 in FY 2016-17. The reasons for the decline in the PLF, Yields and
RASK were completely beyond the control of the Airline and entirely attributable to the adverse market
conditions resulting from the slowdown of the Gulf economies due to sustained pressure on oil prices and
aggressive capacity increases done by Indian low-cost carriers on some of the routes served by the
Airline.
On Time Performance
The On Time Performance (OTP) achieved in FY 2016-17 was 78.6%. The OTP improved considerably in
Q4 reaching the level of 82%. The schedule reliability was more than 99%.
Aircraft Dispatch Reliability
The aircraft dispatch reliability for FY 2016-17 was 98.94%.
Marketing Initiatives
On-Board Meals
Passengers have been given the option to buy the meal of their choice on-line from a choice of vegetarian
and non-vegetarian menus for breakfast, dinner and bar snacks. Also available are choice of fruit meals.
All the meals are priced attractively. The on-line facility was implemented from June 2016 and is currently
available only on select sectors. The airline continues to serve complimentary in-ight meals to those
passengers who do not opt for the paid meals.
Code Sharing with Air India
A one-way code share arrangement with Air India as a marketing carrier has been implemented effective
December 2016. The code share agreement presently covers the following sectors:
Mumbai - Doha - Mumbai
Delhi - Abu Dhabi – Delhi
Kolkata – Singapore – Kolkata
Delhi – Dhaka – Delhi
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IOSA Certiﬁcation
Air India Express received the prestigious IOSA (International Operational Safety Audit) registration
following an internationally recognized audit carried out by IATA. The respective registration from IATA is
valid for two years, and it was awarded after rigorous assessment of the operational management and
control systems of the airline.
2.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
In order to plan its future expansion programme the Company has engaged the services of external
experts to recommend the eet expansion and network development plans that would best serve the
interest of the Airline in the short, medium and long term and also to chalk out strategy for growth.

3.

GOING CONCERN
Due to the various measures taken by the Company towards improving operating and nancial position
viz. increase in capacity by about 33% due to induction of 6 new B737-800 aircraft in the eet, intense
asset/resource utilization, greater operational efciency etc and also due to the increase in revenues,
good demand and lower ATF cost, the nancial condition of the Company has substantially improved.
The Company has been consistently earning Net prots for the last two years. The same trend is expected
to be maintained in FY 2017-18 as well.
Further, in order to have greater market reach, the Company has entered into code share agreement with
Air India. During the year the Company has also received IOSA certication.

4.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The staff strength as on 31 March 2017 was 926.
In addition to the above there were 83 employees (Pilots and Ground Staff) on deputation from the
Holding Company, Air India Limited and 32 Expat Pilots.
As on 31 March 2017 there was one employee with disabilities, in the services of the Company.
Relations with the work force continued to be cordial during the year 2016-17.
HR Initiatives during the year 2016-17
l

Group Medical/ Health Insurance policy for AIXL employees was renewed from 8 February 2017 for
1 year period.

l

New Leave passage policy was implemented through SAP.
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5.

RISK MITIGATION STRATEGIES
The Company continuously monitors the risk perceptions and takes preventive action for mitigation of
risks on various fronts.

6.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
The Company has appointed M/s H P Bhalekar & Associates as Internal Auditors for the year 2016-17 to
carry out various internal audit assignments and special reviews such as compliance of accounting
standards, CENVAT credit, Inventory accounting etc.

XXXXX
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Annexure A
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
As per the Articles of Association of the Company, the number of Directors shall not be less than three and
not more than fourteen.
Board of Directors as on 31 March 2017
Shri Ashwani Lohani
Dr Shefali Juneja
Shri Vinod Hejmadi

CMD- Air India Ltd.
Director, Ministry of Civil Aviation
Director (Finance), Air India Ltd.

Chairman

During the year, all meetings of the Board were chaired by the Chairman. The Board met four times during
the year to review the performance of the Company and to discuss important issues which inter-alia
included Fleet expansion, Retrot of seats and In-seat power facility in 17 owned B737-800 aircraft, Lease
of 2 Boeing 737-800 aircraft, Restructuring of Working Capital Loans, Leasing of CFM 56-7B engine,
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy & Expenditure for the year 2017-18, Delegation of
Administrative & Financial Powers, Code of Business Conduct & Ethics, etc.
2.

BOARD PROCEDURES
The meetings of the Board of Directors are generally held at Air India's Headquarters in New Delhi. The
meetings are scheduled well in advance. In case of exigencies or urgency, resolutions are passed by
circulation. The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the operating performance of the Company.
The agenda for the meetings is prepared by the ofcials of the concerned departments and approved by
the CEO at the rst instance and then put up to the Chairman for nal approval. The Board papers are
circulated to the Directors in advance. The members of the Board have access to all information and are
free to recommend inclusion of any matter in the agenda for discussion. Senior executives are invited to
attend the Board meetings and provide clarication if required. Action Taken Reports are put up to the
Board on regular basis. To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the
Board delegates certain matters to Committees of the Board set up for the purpose.
Details regarding the Board Meetings, Annual General Meetings, Directors' attendance thereat,
Directorships and Committee positions held by the Directors are as under:
Board Meetings :
Board Meetings were held during the nancial year 2016-17 on the following dates:
27
31
29
21

June 2016
August 2016
November 2016
March 2017

(203rd Meeting)
th
(204 Meeting)
th
(205 Meeting)
th
(206 Meeting)
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Particulars of Directors including their attendance at the Board Meetings during the nancial year 2016-17
Name of the Director

Shri Ashwani Lohani
CMD – Air India Ltd.
Chairman

Shri Vinod Hejmadi

Academic
Qualiﬁcations

Mechanical
Engineer and
Fellow of
Chartered
Institute of
Logistic and
Transport

B.Com, ACA

Attendance
out of 4
Board
Meetings
4

Chairman & Managing
Director
Air India Limited
Part-Time Chairman
Air India Air Transport
Services Ltd
Air India Engineering
Services Ltd
Airline Allied Services
Ltd
Hotel Corporation of
India Ltd.
Director
Air Mauritius Limited
Air Mauritius Holdings
Limited
Air India SATS Airport
Services Pvt. Ltd.
Director
Air India Ltd
Air India Air Transport
Services Ltd
Air India Engineering
Services Ltd
Airline Allied Services
Ltd
Hotel Corporation of
India Ltd
Air India SATS Airport
Services Pvt Ltd.

4

Director – Finance
Air India Ltd.

Dr Shefali Juneja
Director, Ministry of
Civil Aviation

M.A M(Phil) Phd.

Details of
Directorships held in
other Companies

4

Director
Airline Allied Services
Ltd

Memberships held in
Committees

Member
Audit Committee

Chairman
CSR Committee
Member
Audit Committee

Chair Person
Audit Committee
Member
CSR Committee

Smt Puja Jindal
Director, Ministry of
Civil Aviation
(Ceased as Director
eff 8.4.2016)

Post Graduate

NIL

Director
Airline Allied Services
Ltd
Pawan Hans
Helicopters Limited
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3.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
As part of the Corporate Governance process and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines, the Audit Committee of the Board has been constituted.
As on 31 March 2017 the following were the members of the Audit Committee :
Dr Shefali Juneja
Shri Ashwani Lohani
Shri Vinod Hejmadi

Chairperson
Member
Member

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are:
l

To recommend for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

l

To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of audit
process;

l

To discuss with the external auditor, before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit
and to ensure coordination where more than one audit rm is involved;

l

To review the Internal Audit program & ensure co-ordination between the Internal & External Auditors
as well as determine whether the Internal Audit function is commensurate with the size and nature of
the Airlines Business and is provided adequate resources and representation within the company;

l

To review/examine the half-yearly and annual nancial statements and the auditors' report thereon;

l

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and nal audits and any matter that
the auditor may wish to discuss in the absence of Management where necessary;

l

To review the Statutory Auditor's Report, Management's response thereto and to take steps to
ensure implementation of the recommendations of the Statutory Auditors ;

l

Approval or any subsequent modication of transactions of the company with related parties;

l

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

l

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

l

Evaluation of internal nancial controls and risk management systems;

l

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

l

To consider other matters as dened by the Board.

The Audit Committee met four times during the year to review various issues including inter-alia Internal
Audit report and Annual Accounts of the Company for the year before submission to the Board, on the
following dates:
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27
31
29
21

June 2016
August 2016
November 2016
March 2017

th

(20 Meeting)
(21st Meeting)
(22nd Meeting)
rd
(23 Meeting)

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings
Name of the Member

4.

No. of Meetings Attended

Dr Shefali Juneja

4

Shri Ashwani Lohani

4

Shri Vinod Hejmadi

4

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS
The details of these meetings are given below :
Date and time of the Meeting

Venue

19 December 2014
At 1400 hrs

Conference Room, 22ndFloor,
Air India Building,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400 021.

44 Annual General Meeting

29 December 2015
At 1000 hrs

Conference Room, 22 Floor,
Air India Building,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400 021.

45th Annual General Meeting

24 November 2016

Conference Room, 22ndFloor,
Air India Building,
Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400 021.

43rd Annual General Meeting

th

nd

Special resolutions passed in the previous three AGMs :
43rd Annual General Meeting held on 19 December 2014

5.

i.

Increase in Authorised Share Capital.

ii.

Increase in Borrowing Powers under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

CODE OF CONDUCT
'Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of Air India Express Limited'
has been devised and made effective from 29 November 2016. The purpose of this Code is to enhance
ethical and transparent process in managing the affairs of the Company. This Code has been made
applicable to:
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a)

All Whole-time Directors including the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company.

b)

All Part-time Directors including Independent Directors under the provisions of law.

c)

Senior Management

All the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company have provided the Annual compliance
Certicate duly signed by them as on 31 March 2017.
Encl :

XXXXX
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CODE OF CONDUCT
DECLARATION

I hereby declare that all the Board Members & Senior Management Personnel have afrmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31 March 2017.

sd/(Rajiv Bansal)
Chairman
Place : New Delhi
Date : 13 September 2017
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REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FY 2016-17

1

2

A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:
●

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted a CSR Policy, which includes implementation
of CSR activities in the areas of Education, Skill Development, Women Empowerment,
Environment and Community Development, Drinking Water, Sanitation, Rural development/Slum
development child care, Conservation of natural resources, etc. The Company's Policy is to focus
on making positive contribution to the society through high impact, sustainable programs. At least
50% of the CSR budget would be allocated for CSR activities in and around areas of Company's
operations. The Company will implement CSR activities to empower weaker, less privileged and
marginalized sections of the Society to create social capital.

●

The CSR focus area projects / programs / activities are inspired by the National Development
Policies and would cover various areas as detailed in the CSR Policy which has been uploaded on
Company's website www.airindiaexpress.in. These activities could be undertaken in the proximity
of the Company's operation area, BRGF Districts as identied by the Planning Commission and
where there was a strategic connect for the Company.

●

The CSR projects / programs / activities would be implemented through implementing
partners/specialized agencies, the selection of whom would be based on the laid down criteria.

The Composition of the CSR Committee
We have a Board Level Sub Committee (CSR Committee) that inter-alia formulates the CSR Policy,
recommends CSR Budget for approval of the Board, approves CSR projects with a monetary value of
Rs.25 lakhs and above and monitor CSR policy, to ensure that the CSR objectives are met. The CSR
Committee comprised of :
Shri Vinod Hejmadi
Dr Shefali Juneja
Ms. Puja Jindal
Shri K Shyam Sundar

Chairman
Member
Member (upto 8.4.2016)
Member/Convenor

The CSR Working Committee comprised of :
Chief of HR
Chief of Finance
Chief of Corporate Communications
Company Secretary

Chairman
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This Committee reviews the proposals for CSR Projects/programmes/activities received from various
locations and approve the proposals of value less than Rs. 25 lakhs against approved allocated Budget.
3

Average net proﬁt of the company for last three ﬁnancial years
Loss of Rs.14.89 Crores/- (Loss of Rupees Fourteen Crores and Eighty Nine Lakhs only).

4

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)
Rs. NIL (Rupees NIL ).

5

6

Details of CSR spent during the ﬁnancial year:
(a)

Total amount to be spent for the ﬁnancial year
Rs.50 Lakhs (Rupees Fifty Lakhs only)

(b)

Amount unspent, if any
Rs.NIL (Rupees NIL)

(c)

Manner in which the amount spent during the ﬁnancial year
See Annexure attached

In case company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net proﬁt of the last three
ﬁnancial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board Report
N.A.

7

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.
We hereby afrm that the CSR Policy, as approved by the Board, has been implemented and the CSR
Committee monitors the implementation of the CSR projects and activities in compliance with our CSR
Objectives.
For AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED

sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure to Project Report On CSR Activities
Sr. CSR Project or
No. activity identiﬁed

(1)

(2)

Sector in
which
the
project
is
covered

(3)

Location
of the
Project
or
Program

(4)

Amount Amount
Outlay spent on
(Budget) the
Projects
or
Programs

(5)

(I) Expenditure on Projects
/ Programs
2.25 lakh
1 TISS Project: Sponsored Education Kozhieducation of 15 Students
kode &
of Diploma in Geriatric
Trivandrum,
Care course
Kerala

(Amount in Rupees)

Cumul- Amount spent
ative
Direct or
expendi- through
ture
Implementing
upto the Agency
reporting
period

(6)

2.25 lakh

(7)

(8)

Through Agency
[TISS]

7.50 lakh 7.44 lakh

Through
Nedumbassery
Grama
Panchayat

10 lakh

10 lakh

Through
Nedumbassery
Grama
Panchayat

Infrastructure Support Education Govt LPS, 15.91
lakh
to Government Schools :
ThuruthiTo improve the infrasserry and
structure and sanitation
Govt LPS,
facilities at two lower
Poikattusse
primary Govt. schools.
ry,
Nedumbas
sery Gram
Panchayat,
Kochi,
Kerala

15.91 lakh

Through Agency
IAHV

14.41
Contribution to Swach Sanitation Swach
lakh
Bharat
Bharat Kosh
Kosh set up
by Central
Govt.

14.41 lakh

Direct Payment

2

Mobile Palliative Care CommUnit: along with medical unity
equipments and uniforms Service
for the Primary Health
Centre

Nedumbassery,
Kochi,
Kerala

3

Sanitation Block on NH Sanitation Nedumbassery,
47 : Sponsored the conKochi,
struction of state of art
Kerala
sanitation block at Airport
Junction on National Highway

4

5

For AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED
sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure to Directors' Report for the year 2016-17
FORM NO. MGT 9 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on ﬁnancial year ended on 31.03.2017
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.
I.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.

CIN

U62100MH1971GOI015328

2.

Registration Date

9 September 1971

3.

Name of the Company

AIR INDIA CHARTERS LIMITED (AICL)

4.

Category/Sub-category
Company

5.
6.
7.

II.

Sr
No

III.
Sr.
No.

1

of

the

Government Company

Address of the Registered ofce 21 Floor, Air India Building, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021.
& contact details
Ph.No : 022-22796666.
Whether listed company
Yes (Debentures)
Name, Address & contact details
of the Registrar & Transfer Agent,
if any.

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.
C101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West)
Mumbai-400083
Cont. No - 022-49186000

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) -

Name and Description of main products / services

NIC Code
of the
Product/
Service

% to total
turnover of
the
Company

To establish, maintain and operate international and
domestic air transport services, scheduled and non
scheduled, in all the countries of the world for the carriage of
passengers, meals and freight and for any other purposes.

511

100

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:
Name and Address of the
Company

Air India Limited
113, Airlines House,
Gurudwara Rakabganj
Road, New Delhi,
110 001.

CIN/GIN

U62200DL2007GOI161431

32

Holding /
Subsidiary
/ Associate

% of
Shares

Holding

100%

Applicable
Section

2 (46)
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IV.

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity) : Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of
the year [As on 01-04-2016]
Demat

A.

Physical

during
the year

% of
Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of
the year [As on 31-03-2017]
Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during
the
year

Promoters

(1) Indian
a)

Individual/ HUF

b)

Central Govt

c)

State Govt(s)

d)

Bodies Corp.

e)

Banks / FI

f)

Any other

-

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A)
B.

Public
Shareholding

1.

Institutions

a)

Mutual Funds/UTI

b)

Banks / FI

c)

Central Govt.

d)

State Govt.(s)

e)

Venture Capital
Funds

f)

Insurance
Companies

g)

FIIs

h)

Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i)

Others (specify)
Foreign Banks

Sub-total (B)(1):-

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000 100

-

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000

100

0.00

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000 100

-

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000

100

0.00

-

-

Not Applicable

-

-

-

-

-
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Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the
year [As on 01-04-2016]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-03-2017]

% of
Total
Demat
Physical
Share
s
Not Applicable

% of
Total
Share
s

Demat

Physical

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000

100

7,80,00,000

7,80,00,000

100

2. Non-Institutions

Total

%
Change
during
the
year

a) Bodies Corp.
(Market
Maker + LLP)
i)

Indian

ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i)

Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh
c) Others (specify)
i)

Non Resident
Indians

ii) Non Resident
Indians - Non
Repatriable
iii) Ofce Bearers
iv) Directors
v) HUF
vi) Overseas
Corporate Bodies
vii) Foreign Nationals
viii) Clearing Members
ix) Trusts
x) Foreign Bodies - DR
R
Sub-total (B)(2):Total Public
Shareholding (B) =
(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C)
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B)

Shareholding of PromoterShareholding at the beginning of
the year

Sr
No

1

C)

Shareholder's
Name

Air India Limited
along with its
nominees

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the
Company

%of
Shares
Pledged/
encumber
ed to total
shares

7,80,00,000

100

NIL

Shareholding at the end
of the year

No. of
Shares

% of total
Shares
of the
Company

%of
Shares
Pledged/
encumber
ed to total
shares

%
change
in
Shareholding
during
the
year

7,80,00,000

100

NIL

0.00

Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Sr
No.

Particulars

Cumulative Shareholding at
end of the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of
the
company

7,80,00,000

100

7,80,00,000

100

7,80,00,000

100

7,80,00,000

100

At the beginning of the year
Air India Limited
At the end of the year
Air India Limited

D)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Sr
No

1

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

No. of
shares
NIL

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
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% of total
shares of the
company

Cumulative Shareholding at
end of the year
No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
company
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E)
Sr.
No.

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Shareholding of each Directors and each
Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding at
the end of year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the
company

1

Shri Ashwani Lohani (Jointly with AI)

1

0.0003

1

0.0003

2

Shri Vinod Hejmadi (Jointly with AI)

1

0.0003

1

0.0003

3

Shri K Shyam Sundar (Jointly with AI)

1

0.0003

1

0.0003

Total

3

V.

3

INDEBTEDNESS- Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/
accrued but not due for payment.
(In Rs Crore)
Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

1,762.88

1,138.30

-

2,901.18

-

-

-

-

64.16

-

-

64.16

1,827.05

1,138.30

-

2,965.34

-

346.66

-

346.66

Indebtedness at the beginning of the ﬁnancial year
i)

Principal Amount

ii)

Interest due but not paid

iii)

Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the ﬁnancial year
Addition
Reduction

711.98

-

-

711.98

Net Change

711.98

346.66

-

365.32

1,113.25

1,484.95

-

2,598.21

-

-

-

-

1.81

-

-

1.81

1,115.06

1,484.95

-

2,600.02

Indebtedness at the end of the ﬁnancial year
i)

Principal Amount

ii)

Interest due but not paid

iii)

Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)
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VI.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager* :

( In ﬁgures)
Particulars of Remuneration

Sr
No
1

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager

Total
Amount

Gross salary
(a)

Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Prots in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income -tax Act, 1961
2

Stock Option

3

Sweat Equity

4

Commission as % of prot others, specify.

5

Others : (PF, DCS, House Perks tax etc)
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

* There are no Managing, Whole Time Directors in the Company.
B.

Remuneration to other directors

Sr
No.

Particulars of Remuneration

1

Independent Directors
*Fee for attending board committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify (Fees for attending
Board Sub Committee Meetings)

2

Total(1)
Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board committee meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Total
Amount

Name of Directors
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

* No sitting fee was paid to the Non-exeuctive Directors for the nancial year 2016-17.
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C.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/
MANAGER/ WTD
( ﬁgures in Rs)

Sr.
No.

1

Key Managerial Personnel
Particulars of Remuneration
Gross salary

CEO

CS

CFO

Total

2,995,200

*

*

2,995,200

(a)

Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

-

(b)

Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

-

(c)

Prots in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

-

2

Stock Option

-

-

-

-

3

Sweat Equity

-

-

-

-

4

Commission

-

-

-

-

- as % of prot

-

-

-

-

Others, specify.

-

-

-

-

Others: (PF, DCS, House Perks tax etc)

-

-

-

-

2,995,200

-

-

2,995,200

5

Total

* CEO, CFO and CS are KMPs. The Company Secretary is holding the position in addition to her
responsibilities as Sr. AGM-Corporate Affairs, Air India Ltd. Similarly, CFO is on deputation from
Air India and no remuneration is paid to them by AIXL.

VII.

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

A.

B.

C.

COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /
Punishment/
Compounding fees
imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/
COURT]

Appeal
made,
if any (give
Details)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Section
of the
Companies
Act
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AIXL
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
ST
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
Air India Express Limited,
(Erstwhile known as Air India Charters Limited)
CIN-U62100MH1971GOI015328
21st Floor, Air India Building,
Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Air India Express Limited [CIN-U62100MH1971GOI015328] (hereinafter called
'the Company'). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.
Based on my verication of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its ofcers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit and as per the explanations given to me and
the representation made by the Management, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
st
Audit Period covering the nancial year ended on 31 March, 2017 ('Audit Period') generally complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliancemechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns led and other records maintained by the
Company for the nancial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the applicable provisions of:
(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder (In so far as they are applicable);

(ii)

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder (Not applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
(v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):(a)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(b)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);
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(c)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(d)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benets) Regulations, 2014.
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(f)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(g)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

Having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the basis of the Compliance
Certicates/Management Representation Letters issued by the designated ofcers of the Company, the
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specically to the Company:
(a)

Aircraft Act, 1934 and the Rules made thereunder;

(b)

Carriage by Air Act 1972 and the Rules made thereunder;

(c)

The Aircraft (Carriage of Dangerous Goods) Rules, 2003 and the Rules made thereunder;

(d)

Civil Aviation Requirements issued by Directorate General of Civil Aviation;

(e)

Acts prescribed under Environmental Protection.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i.

Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and

ii.

The Debt Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange of India in
accordance with The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. During the Audit Period under review the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above
subject to the following observations:
i.

The Company has not appointed Independent Directors as required under the provisions of Section
149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualication of Directors) Rules, 2014 and hence, no meeting of the Independent Directors could be
held during the Audit Period.

ii.

Since the Company has not appointed Independent Directors, the Company has not complied with
the provisions of Section 177(2) and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as regards the composition of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
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I further report, that the compliance by the Company of applicable nancial laws, like direct and indirect tax
laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory nancial
auditor and other designated professionals;
Subject to what is stated herein above as regards the appointment of Independent Directors, the changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Decisions at the Board Meetings, as represented by the Management, were taken unanimously.
As represented and explained to us, I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to
communication received from various statutory / regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective
measures, wherever found necessary.
I further report that during the audit period, there are no specic events / actions having a major bearing on the
Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
referred to above.

Place : Mumbai
Date : 4 September, 2017

VIJAY SONONE & CO.
Company Secretaries

Ofce Address :
Annex-103, Dimple Arcade,
Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East),
Mumbai 400101.

[ VijaySonone FCS.7301 ]
(Proprietor)
[Certicate of Practice No.7991]

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Appendix A' and forms an integral part
of this report.
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'Appendix A'
To,
The Members,
Air India Express Limited,
(Erstwhile known as Air India Charters Limited)
CIN-U62100MH1971GOI015328
21st Floor, Air India Building,
Nariman Point, Mumbai -400021
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1.

The maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2.

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verication was done on
test check basis to ensure that the correct facts are reected in the secretarial records. I believe that the
processes and practices followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.

I have not veried the correctness and appropriateness of the nancial records and books of accounts of
the Company.

4.

Where ever required, I have obtained the Management Representations about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and occurance of events etc.

5.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the verication of procedures on test
check basis.

6.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efcacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Mumbai
Date : 4 September, 2017

VIJAY SONONE & CO.
Company Secretaries

Ofce Address :
Annex-103, Dimple Arcade,
Asha Nagar, Kandivali (East),
Mumbai 400101.

[ VijaySonone FCS.7301 ]
(Proprietor)
[ Certicate of Practice No.7991]
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Management’s Comments on the observations contained in Secretarial Audit Report.
Observations

Management's Comments

The Company has not appointed Independent
Directors as required under the provisions of
Section 149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualication of Directors) Rules, 2014 and hence,
no meeting of the Independent Directors could be
held during the Audit Period.

Air India Express Limited (AIXL) is a wholly owned
Subsidiary of Air India Limited (AIL), a Government
Company.
As per Article 117 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, all the Directors of the Company are
appointed by AIL in consultation with the
Government of India.
AIXL has requested AIL to nominate at least two
Independent Directors on its Board and the reply is
awaited.

Since the Company has not appointed Independent
Directors, the Company has not complied with the
provisions of Section 177(2) and Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 as regards the composition of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Board.

As per the provisions of Section 177(2) of the
Companies Act, Audit Committee shall consist of a
minimum of three Directors with Independent
Directors forming a majority.
As required under section 178, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee should consist of 3 or
more Non Executive Directors out of which not less
than one half should be Independent Directors.
Presently there is no Independent Director on the
Board of AIXL and the matter has been taken up with
AIL.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b)
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017
The preparation of nancial statements of Air India Express Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017 in
accordance with the nancial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor/auditors appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the
nancial statements under Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with standards on
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit
Report dated 28 June 2017.
I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit under
section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the nancial statements of Air India Express Limited for the year ended 31 March
2017. This supplementary audit has been, carried out independently without access to the working papers of
the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a
selective examination of some of the accounting records. Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to
highlight the following signicant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention
and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the nancial statements and the
related audit report:
A.

Comments on Financial Position
Balance Sheet
Liabilities - Current Liability
Other Current Liabilities Rs. 14998.73 Million.
The above includes provision for outstanding liability towards Guarantee Fee payable by AIXL to the
Government as on 31 March 2017.
The Company has provided for liability at the rate of 0.5% of outstanding dues. However, as per
Chapter 11, Rule 248(2) of the General Financial Rules 2005 and as per Chapter 11, rule 279(3) of the
General Financial Rules 2017 where the guarantee fees is not paid on the due date fee should be
charged at double the normal rates for the period of default. The Company has not paid the guarantee
fee for the period from Financial Year 2011-12 to 2014-15. However, in respect of default cases, as
against Guarantee Fees at 1% of outstanding dues, the Company has made a provision at the rate of
0.5% only. This has resulted in under provision of Other Current Liabilities and overstatement of Prot
by Rs.499.1 Million.

B.

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
1. Fixed Assets
Air India Express is providing depreciation for full year in the year of acquisition of Assets in respect of
‘Rotables’ and’ Other Fixed Asset’ and no depreciation is provided in the year of disposal. This is not in
accordance with Note 2 to Schedule-II of Companies Act, 2013.
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C.

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
3. Inventories
As per this Note, Inventories are valued at weighted average cost. However, as per AS-2 Inventories
should be valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. Hence, inventory policy of Air India
Express is not in compliance with AS-2.

For and on the behalf of
The Comptroller & Auditor General of India
Sd/(Tanuja Mittal)
Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& ex-ofcio Member, Audit Board-II, Mumbai
Place : Mumbai
Date : 29 August 2017
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MANAGEMENT REPLIES TO THE COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Sr.
No.

1.

Audit Observation

Management Reply

A. Comment on Financial Position
Balance Sheet
Liabilities :- Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities :- Rs.14998.73
Million
The above includes provision for outstanding
liability towards Guarantee Fee payable by AIXL
to the Government as on 31 March 2017.
The Company has provided for liability at the rate
of 0.5% of outstanding dues. However, as per
Chapter 11, Rule 248(2) of the General Financial
Rules 2005 and as per Chapter 11, rule 279(3) of
the General Financial Rules 2017 where the
guarantee fees is not paid on the due date fee
should be charged at double the normal rates for
the period of default. The Company has not paid
the guarantee fee for the period from Financial
Year 2011-12 to 2014-15. However, in respect of
default cases, as against Guarantee Fees at 1%
of outstanding dues, the Company has made a
provision at the rate of 0.5% only. This has
resulted in under provision of Other Current
Liabilities and overstatement of Prot by
Rs.499.1 Million.

02

Air India Express has created the liability in the
books of accounts (towards the Guarantee fee @
0.5% on the outstanding) on annual basis effective
2011-12 onwords.
The liability so created was discharged for the
years 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 paid in full.
Regarding liability for the years 2011-12, 2012-13
and 2013-14, request was made to the Government to clear the dues in installments . The airline
is hopeful of clearing the dues in full by 2018.
As there is no default by AIXL and only delays in
clearance, we have not received any claim for the
delays. Further when the company was incurring
losses, payment was not made (through liability
was created and updated to the Government) ,it is
therefore submitted that creation of liability in the
books of accounts for the difference is not
required.

B. Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
1. Fixed Assets
Air india Express is providing depreciation for full
year in the year of acquisition of Assets in
respect of “Rotables” and “Other Fixed Asset”
and no depreciation is provided in the year of
disposal. This is not in accordance with Note 2 to
Schedule –II of Companies Act 2013.

The Company has adopted the signicant
accounting policy of the Parent Company (Air India
Ltd) in order to be in line with CFS requirement. As
regards the life of the Assets used for depreciation
in respect of Other Fixed assets, the same is in line
with Schedule II of the Companies Act.
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Sr.
No.

03

Audit Observation

Management Reply

C. Signiﬁcant accounting Policies
3. Inventories
As per this Note. Inventories are valued at
weighted average cost. However. As per AS-2
Inventories should be valued at cost or net
realizable value whichever is lower. Hence,
inventory policy of Air india Express is not in
compliance with AS-2.

According to para 3.2 of AS-2 “Net Realizable
Value” has been dened as “Net Realizable Value
is the estimated selling price in ordinary course
of business less the estimated cost of
completion and the estimated cost necessary
to make the sale”.
It would also be seen from the denition that the
“inventory to have a net realizable value should be
capable of being sold in the ordinary course of
business.”
However, in the case of Air India Express Ltd
(Wholly owned Subsidiary of Air India Ltd.), the
inventory mainly consist of aircraft parts,
consumables and expendables which are not
meant for sale but are meant for internal
consumption only and hence have been valued at
weighted average cost.
This is the most appropriate valuation policy
adopted by the Company considering the type of
industry and inventory held by it.
Hence, the Company's Accounting Policy is not at
variance with the AS-2 but only a renement of the
same.
We may add that 'Net realisable value “ basis is
more relevant for FMCG industry or goods held for
sale in the normal course of business which is not
applied to the Airline industry as the aircraft parts,
consumables and expendables are used only for its
own aircraft except in the case of scrap which is
valued at the net realizable value.
In addition to the above, the company has adopted
the policy in the line with the policies of the holding
company in order to comply with the CFS
requirement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED (formerly
known as Air India Charters Limited)
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
We have audited the accompanying standalone nancial statements of “Air India Express Limited(formerly
known as Air India Charters Limited)”(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2017, the Statement of Prot and Loss for the period then ended, cash ow statement for the period then ended
and a summary of signicant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these nancial statements that
give a true and fair view of the nancial position, nancial performance and cash ows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial
controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Standalone Financial statements based on our
audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specied under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the nancial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal nancial
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the nancial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal
nancial controls system over nancial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the nancial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis
for qualied opinion.
BASIS OF QUALIFIED OPINION
i.

Note No. 30 (c) regarding items of repairable spares which are being capitalized by the Company
as Fixed Assets and depreciated over the estimated useful life. These items are not signicant
items of Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE), either on aggregate basis or on individual basis. As
such, it doesn't meet the recognition criterion of AS 10 – “Property, Plant & Equipment” and
cannot be capitalised. Such items should be accounted for as Inventory under AS 2 – “Valuation
of Inventories”. Consequently, Fixed assets are overstated by Rs. 173.15 Million and Inventory is
understated by Rs. 173.15 Million. Further, Depreciation is overstated by Rs. 54.08 Million.

ii.

We invite attention to Note No.30,read with Note No.(1)(C)(2) & (3), regarding balances of Inventories,
including balances of Rotable and Repairable spares capitalized as Fixed Assets and which are
maintained & controlled by Parent Company and report as under:

iii.

a.

With reference to Note No. 30(a) to (j), the Company does not have any control over the
recording & reporting on the Inventory Accounting System, including inventory valuation
methodology.

b.

The Management has not conducted the physical verication of Inventories during as well
as at the year end.

c.

As regards Inventory lying with third parties, Management has neither conducted any
physical verication nor obtained conrmations for the balances as at the year end.

d.

In absence of adequate data, the Management has not made any provision relating to
balances lying in intermediary account for current nancial year. We are unable to comment
on the adequacy and completeness or otherwise, of these provisions on account of above
mentioned observations.

e.

The observations (a) to (d) above are also applicable to balances of rotables and repairables
which have been accounted for as Fixed Assets.

f.

The cumulative impact of points (a) to (e) above, on the nancial statements cannot be
ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion on the same.

We further report that in view of the observations as per paragraph (I) & (ii) above, cumulative
impact to the extent quantiable is as follows,
a.

Prot for the year is understated by Rs.54.08 Million & Accumulated Losses is understated
by Rs. 54.08 Million.

b.

The Earnings per share as computed in Note No. 46 is subject to observations contained
herein.
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QUALIFIED OPINION
Subject to the “Basis for Qualied Opinion” paragraph above and unascertainable impact thereof, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the standalone
nancial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:
st

i.

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017;

ii.

In the case of the Statement of Prot and Loss, of the Prot for the year ended on that date; and

iii.

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash ows for the year ended on that date.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER
We also invite attention to the following –
I.

Note no. 35, 36& 45 regarding conrmations and reconciliation including matching of debits/credits in
various balances in other assets / liabilities accounts at certain locations and pending reconciliation of
account payables & account receivables, balances in intermediary accounts. The precise nancial impact
of the same on the accounts / nancial statements is not ascertainable. We are unable to comment on the
impact of adjustments arising out of reconciliation/conrmation of such balances, on the Financial
Statements.

ii.

Note No. 52, regarding the nancial statements of the Company having been prepared on a going
concern basis, notwithstanding the fact that its net worth is completely eroded. The appropriateness of the
assumption of going concern is dependent upon realization of the various initiatives undertaken by the
Company and/or the Company's ability to raise the requisite nance / generate cash ows in future to
meet its obligations.

iii.

Note No. 23(A) which describes the uncertainty related to the non-provision of interest and penalty, if any,
payable towards outstanding dues for service tax, tax deduction at source.

iv.

Necessary certicate as prescribed under SA 402 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) in respect of Inventory Accounting System being handled by parent company were not made
available for audit purposes.

v.

Note No. 49 regarding non-disclosure of information as prescribed in clauses (a) to (e) except (d) (which is
not applicable to the Company) of Note 5(viii) of Part II of Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our opinion is not qualied in respect of these matters.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure “A” statement on the
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:
a)

we have sought and obtained, to the extent provided by the Management, all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit
except as indicated in the matters described in the Basis for Qualied Opinion paragraph;

b)

except as indicated in the matters described in the Basis for Qualied Opinion paragraph, in our opinion
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books and proper information / returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have
been received from Business Areas / Stations / Locations;

c)

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Prot and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account and with the returns received from Business Areas / Stations
which were not visited by us;

d)

in our opinion, the aforesaid nancial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
specied under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except
as mentioned in the Basis of Qualied Opinion paragraph above.

e)

The matters described in clause (ii) in the Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our opinion, may have
an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

f)

The Company being a Government Company as dened in section 2(45) of the Companies Act,2013 is
exempted from the applicability of the provision of the section 164 (2) of the said Act, vide Circular No.
G.S.R. dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of the company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate report in Annexure “B”.

h)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we report as
under with respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014:
i.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its nancial position except
as disclosed in the nancial statements;

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise;

iii.

There has not been an occasion in case of the Company, during the year under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

iv.

The Company has not provided all requisite disclosures in its Financial Statements, as to holdings as
well as dealings, in Specied Bank Notes, during the period from 8th November 2016 to 30th
December 2016, due to absence of necessary details. As such, we are unable to comment whether
the same are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the Company. (Refer Note No.
51 also.)
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We are enclosing our report, in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company, as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure C on the directions and sub-directions issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner 
Membership No.: 121162

Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 9 OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED (formerly known as Air India Charters Limited) FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 and amendments thereto and according to the
information and explanations given to us during the course of the audit and on the basis of such checks of the
books and records as were considered appropriate we report that:
I.

In respect of the xed assets,
a.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of xed assets except items of repairable spares and rotables.

b.

The Company has a program of Physical Verication of xed assets on rotational basis so that every
asset is veried once every two years which in our opinion is adequate. As informed to us, physical
verication of xed assets, except items “rotables and repairable spares”, has been conducted by
the management during the year and material discrepancies noticed during the verication were
rectied. However, in respect of rotables & reparable spares, discrepancies, if any, may have
remained undetected & unadjusted.

c.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of examination of the
records of the Company, there are no immovable properties in the name of the company.

II.

In respect of inventories, the Company has a program of physical verication of inventory on rotational
basis so that complete inventory is veried once every two years. However, it is observed that physical
verication of inventory has not been carried out since Financial Year 2012-13. Material discrepancies, if
any, may have remained undetected & unadjusted. We are unable to comment upon the precise nancial
impact of the same.

III.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, rms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

IV.

The Company has not granted any loans, investments, guarantees and security. As such, question of
complying with provisions of Section 185 and section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

V.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there or under any
directives report issued by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of the Clause (V) of
paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

VI.

The Central Government has not prescribed for maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the Company. Therefore, the provision of the Clause (VI) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

VII. In respect of the statutory dues:
According to the records of the Company, the undisputed statutory dues have been regularly deposited
with the appropriate authorities except for the following:
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a.

As informed to us and based on explanations received, the Company has deducted Profession Tax
in respect of few locations. However, the concerned authority has refused to accept the payment
pending determination of its jurisdiction. As such there is unpaid amount of Profession Tax as on 31st
March 2017 to the extent of Rs. 1.24 Million.

b.

Regarding TDS - In absence of proper linkage between deductions and deposits of Income tax
deducted at source and reconciliations of balances outstanding and due to recording expenses on
payment basis in the books, year-end recording of expenses in books, we are not able to offer any
comments, including delay if any.

c.

Regarding non-reversal of service tax input credit under Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 –
Company is not maintaining separate books of accounts for exempted and taxable services
respectively. As such, Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 requires the Company to pay an
amount equal to 7% of value of exempted service reverse or shall pay an amount equivalent to the
CENVAT credit attributable to input services used in, or in relation to provision of exempted services
subject to the conditions and procedure specied in sub-rule (3A). In absence of adequate details,
adequacy or otherwise of such reversal cannot be ascertained and we are unable to form an opinion
on the same.

d.

In respect of the statutory dues, if any, at foreign stations not covered during the audit, since the
records are kept at respective stations and which were not available for verication during the audit,
we are unable to comment whether the dues are timely deposited.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of above clauses except for Profession Tax, as mentioned in clause (a) above, were in
arrears, as at 31st March, 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date on which they
became payable.

e.

According to the records of the Company and information and explanation given to us, there are no
dues outstanding in respect of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess or other statutory dues on
account of any dispute, for more than 6 months, except as mentioned below:
Sr. No.

Name of Statute

1.

Tax deducted at Source as per
Income tax for Financial
Year 2009-2017

2.

Amount
(Rs. in Million)

Nature and forum where
dispute is pending

3.27

Income Tax department

Service Tax for Financial
Year 2005- 2017

835.04

Commissioner (Appeal)

3.

Service Tax for Financial
Year 2014- 2016

24.41

CESTAT

4.

Customs Duty for various
transactions

17.18

Commissioner of Customs,
Cochin.

Total

879.90
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f.

According to the information and explanation given to us, company is not covered under the Investor
Education and Protection Fund and Employees State Insurance.

VIII. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
nancial institutions, banks or dues to debenture holders. Further, no loans or borrowings were taken from
government.
IX.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans
during the year. Therefore, the provision of the Clause (IX) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

X.

As explained to us and according to information and explanation given to us during the course of audit, we
have not observed any fraud by the company or any fraud on the company by its ofcers or employees
during the year.

XI.

As per the Notication GSR 463(E) of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Dated 5 June 2015, Section 197 of
the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to Government Companies. Therefore, the provision of the
Clause (XI) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not applicable to the
Company.

th

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company; therefore, clause XII of this order is not applicable.
XIII. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with related parties are in compliances with
the section 177 & 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable Accounting Standards.
XIV. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.
XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.
XVI. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants,
FRN: -105215W / W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
Membership No: - 121162
Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AIR INDIA EXPRESS LIMITED (formerly known as Air India Charters
Limited):
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF
SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)
We have audited the internal nancial controls over nancial reporting of Air India Express Limited
(formerly known as Air India Charters Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone nancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal nancial controls
based on the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
nancial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable nancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls over nancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal nancial controls
over nancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
nancial controls system over nancial reporting and their operating effectiveness and to obtain an
understanding of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal nancial controls system over nancial reporting.
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A Company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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A company's internal nancial control over nancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
1)

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and

3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
nancial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal nancial controls over nancial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
nancial controls over nancial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
nancial control over nancial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
OPINION
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the material
weaknesses have been identied in the Company's internal nancial controls over nancial reporting
as at March 31, 2017 in respect of
a)

Accounting of Inventory: The Company did not have an adequate internal control system for
inventory with regard to receipts, issue for consumption and physical verication and valuation of
the same. These could potentially result in material misstatements in the Company's trade
payables, consumption, inventory and expense account balances.

b)

Accounting of repairable spares.

c)

Controls over planning and monitoring of nancial closing process.

d)

Controls over spread sheets used in nancial closing process.

e)

Procedural compliances in respect of statutory dues/liabilities in respect of Indirect Tax and Direct
Tax.

f)

Controls related to entries in migration accounts.

g)

Controls related to Review of Accounts Payable.

A 'material weakness' is a deciency, or a combination of deciencies, in internal nancial control over
nancial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's
annual nancial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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In our opinion, the Company has, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, in all material respects,
maintained adequate internal nancial controls over nancial reporting as of March 31, 2017, based on
the internal control over nancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and
except for effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of
the objectives of the control criteria, the Company's internal nancial controls over nancial reporting
were operating effectively as of March 31, 2017.
We have considered the material weaknesses identied and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2017 standalone nancial
statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses has affected our opinion on the nancial
statements of the Company and we have issued a qualied opinion on the standalone nancial
statements.
For KIRTANE & PANDIT LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-105215W / W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
Membership No.: 121162
Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Air India Express Limited (formerly known as Air India Charters Limited):
Report on Directions issued by C&AG in respect of Statutory Audit of Air India Express Ltd. (formerly
known as Air India Charters Limited) for the Financial Year 2016-17
Sr.No.

Directions/ Sub-Directions

Statutory Auditor's Comments

1.

Whether the Company has clear title/ Lease
deeds for freehold and leasehold
respectively? If not Please state the area of
freehold/ leasehold land for which title/
Lease deeds are not available.

Based on the information and explanation given to
us during audit, the Company does not have any
freehold/ leasehold land.

2.

Whether there are any cases of waiver/
write off debts/ loan/ Interest etc., If yes, the
reason there for and the amount involved.

Based on the information and explanation given to
us, there is no waiver / write off debts, interest etc.,
during the FY 2016-17.

3.

Whether proper records are maintained for
inventories lying with third parties & assets
received as gift from Govt. or other
authorities.

Inventories lying with third partiesInventories are maintained and controlled by the
Parent Company. As regards Inventory lying with
third parties, Management has neither conducted
any physical verication nor obtained conrmations
for the balances as at the year end. The audit report
has been qualied in this respect.
Assets received as Gift from GovernmentBased on the information and explanation given to
us during audit, the Company has not received any
Assets as gift from Government.

For Kirtane& Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 105215W / W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
Membership No. :121162
Place: New Delhi
Date: 28 June 2017
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Management Comments to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements for the Financial Year 2016-17.
Sr.No.

1.

Audit Observation

Management Comments

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying standalone
nancial statements of “Air India Express Limited
(formerly known as Air India Charters Limited)”(“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2017, the Statement of Prot and Loss for the
period then ended, cash ow statement for the period
then ended and a summary of signicant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone
Financial Statements
The Management and Board of Directors of the
Company are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')
with respect to the preparation of these nancial
statements that give a true and fair view of the nancial
position, nancial performance and cash ows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specied under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal nancial
controls, that are operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
nancial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

3.

This is a statement of fact.

This is a statement of fact.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
Standalone Financial statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.
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This is a statement of fact.
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Sr.No.

Audit Observation

Management Comments

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specied under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
nancial statements are free from material misstatement.
4.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
nancial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the nancial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
nancial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the nancial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Company has in place an
adequate internal nancial controls system over
nancial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the nancial statements.

This is a statement of fact.

5.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufcient and appropriate to provide a basis for qualied
opinion.

This is a statement of fact.

6.

Basis of Qualied Opinion
i.

Note No. 30 (c) regarding items of repairable
spares which are being capitalized by the
Company as Fixed Assets and depreciated over
the estimated useful life. These items are not
signicant items of Property, Plant & Equipment
(PPE), either on aggregate basis or on individual
basis. As such, it doesn't meet the recognition
criterion of AS 10 – “Property, Plant & Equipment”
and cannot be capitalised. Such items should be
accounted for as Inventory under AS2 – “Valuation
of Inventories”. Consequently, Fixed assets are
overstated by Rs. 173.15 Million and Inventory is
understated by Rs. 173.15 Million. Further,
Depreciation is overstated by Rs. 54.08 Million.
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Effective FY 2015-16, Air India Express
Ltd. has changed the signicant
accounting policy in respect of Repairable spares in order to be:
a.

In line with the accounting policy
adopted by the Parent company.

b.

The repairables are having life
term of more than 2/3 cycles.

c.

These items are serially numbered and adequate controls are
exercised accordingly.

AIXL
Sr.No.

Audit Observation

Management Comments
d.

ii.

These items are considered as
having life span of 10 years and
depreciation is charged accordingly.

We invite attention to Note No.30, read with Note
No.(1)(C)(2)&(3), regarding balances of
Inventories, including balances of Rotable and
Repairable spares capitalized as Fixed Assets
and which are maintained & controlled by Parent
Company and report as under:

During FY 2015-16, the parent
company has signed a contract with
M/s. RAMCO for upgrading the
software to 5.7 / 5.8 version which
would take care of all the issues /
observations raised. AIXL has borne
1/3rd of the cost for the upgradation.

a.

With reference to Note No. 30(a) to (j), the
Company does not have any control over
the recording & reporting on the Inventory
Accounting System, including inventory
valuation methodology.

The required control on recording,
reporting and accounting are exercised
by the Parent company for all the group
companies through RAMCO system by
MMD. Periodical reports are generated
from the RAMCO system accordingly.

b.

The Management has not conducted the
physical verication of Inventories during as
well as at the year end.

Physical verication of the Inventories
would be carried out in consultation with
Parent Company on completion of the
project through an external professional
rm if required. The outcome of the
project is estimated during FY 2016-17.

c.

As regards Inventory lying with third parties,
Management has neither conducted any
physical verication nor obtained conrmations for the balances as at the year end.

Inventory lying with third parties are
continuously followed up for repair/
return.

d.

In absence of adequate data, the Management has not made any provision relating to
balances lying in intermediary account for
current nancial year. We are unable to
comment on the adequacy and completeness or otherwise, of these provisions on
account of above mentioned observations.

The company is of the opinion that
provisions are adequate.

e.

The observations (a) to (d) above are also
applicable to balances of rotables and
repairables which have been accounted for
as Fixed Assets.
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Audit Observation
f.

iii.

7.

Management Comments

The cumulative impact of points (a) to (e)
above, on the nancial statements cannot
be ascertained and we are unable to form an
opinion on the same.

We further report that in view of the observations
as per paragraph (i) & (ii) above, cumulative
impact to the extent quantiable is as follows,
a.

Prot for the year is understated by
Rs.54.08 Million & Accumulated Losses are
overstated by Rs. 54.08 Million.

b.

The Earnings per share as computed in
Note No. 46 is subject to observations
contained herein.

Qualiﬁed Opinion
Subject to the “Basis for Qualied Opinion” paragraph
above and unascertainable impact thereof, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the standalone nancial
statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

8.

This is the summary of the above
mentioned paras. Kindly refer to the
comments provided under respective
paras.

i.

In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
st
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017;

ii.

In the case of the Statement of Prot and Loss, of
the Prot for the year ended on that date; and

iii.

In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the
cash ows for the year ended on that date.

Audit comments are noted.

Emphasis of Matter
We also invite attention to the following –
i.

Note no. 35, 36 & 45 regarding conrmations and
reconciliation including matching of debits/credits
in various balances in other assets / liabilities
accounts at certain locations and pending
reconciliation of account payables & account
receivables, balances in intermediary accounts.
The precise nancial impact of the same on the
accounts / nancial statements is not ascertain-

63

The balances as per books of
accounts of various parties including
the Fuel vendors are reconciled as on
31.03.2017. The conrmation of
balances as required were also sent to
all parties including the Oil companies
as on 31.03.2017 as per the SAP
balances. However the conrmation of
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ii.

Management Comments

able. We are unable to comment on the impact of
adjustments arising out of reconciliation/
conrmation of such balances, on the Financial
Statements.

balances as on 31.03.2017 was
received from few parties only.

Note No. 52, regarding the nancial statements of
the Company having been prepared on a going
concern basis, notwithstanding the fact that its
net worth is completely eroded. The appropriateness of the assumption of going concern is
dependent upon realization of the various
initiatives undertaken by the Company and/or the
Company's ability to raise the requisite nance /
generate cash ows in future to meet its
obligations.

During the current nancial year also,
the EBIDTA of the Airline has improved
signicantly and due to the various
measures taken, the Com-pany's
operational and nancial position has
also improved substantially. The
Company has recorded a net prot of
Rs. 296.75 Crores during FY 2016-17.
The Airline had achieved a net prot of
Rs.362 Crores during the previous
year (FY 2015-16). The Company has
recorded Operating prot during the
last 4 years in a row. Further, the
Airline has been success-ful in
achieving Cash prot for the past 3
years and net prot for 2 years
including the current scal also the
Airline has budgeted a net prot of Rs.
208.30 crores in FY 2017-18.
The following proposals have also
been completed during the current
ﬁscal:
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l

Code share arrangement with
parent company.

l

Special “Buy on Board” customized menu for the passengers and
available for sale online.

l

Average utilization of more than
12 hours per aircraft per day.

l

Introduction of Pay Zapp and Pay
TM facilities for the esteemed
customers.

l

Replacement of old seat and
provision of In-seat power on 17
Owned B 737 – 800 NG.

AIXL
Sr.No.

Audit Observation

Management Comments
In view of the above, it is evident
that the accounts have been
prepared on “Going Concern” basis.

iii.

Note No. 23(A) which describes the uncertainty
related to the non-provision of interest and penalty,
if any, payable towards outstanding dues for
service tax, tax deduction at source.

As a matter of Prudence, the management has disclosed these items in
Contingent Liability.

iv.

Necessary certicate as prescribed under SA 402
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) in respect of Inventory Accounting
System being handled by parent company&
outsourced activity of Revenue Reconciliation
were not made available for audit purposes.

The Company is of the opinion that
certicate as per SA 402 of ICAI is not
required in respect of the Inventory
Accounting System as the Inventory
Management / Accounting System RAMCO was procured for Holding &
Group Companies and controlled by
Parent Company and thus the same is
not to be considered as outsourced to
Holding Co.

v.

Note No. 49 regarding non-disclosure of
information as prescribed in clauses (a) to (e)
except (d) (which is not applicable to the
Company) of Note 5(viii) of Part II of
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of the directive of the
Ministry of Corporate affairs, Govt.
Companies are exempted and the
related clauses do not apply.

Our opinion is not qualied in respect of these
matters.
9.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-Section (11) of Section143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexure “A” statement on the
matters specied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

10.

This is a statement of fact.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we further
report that:
a)

we have sought and obtained, to the extent
provided by the Management, all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit except as indicated in the
matters described in the Basis for Qualied
Opinion paragraph;
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This is a statement of fact.
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Audit Observation

Management Comments

b)

except as indicated in the matters described in the
Basis for Qualied Opinion paragraph, in our
opinion proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books and
proper information / returns adequate for the
purposes of our audit have been received from
Business Areas / Stations / Locations;

This is a statement of fact.

c)

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Prot and Loss
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account
and with the returns received from Business Areas
/ Stations which were not visited by us;

This is a statement of fact.

d)

in our opinion, the aforesaid nancial statements
comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
specied under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
except as mentioned in the Basis of Qualied
Opinion paragraph above.

This is a statement of fact.

e)

The matters described in clause (ii) in the
Emphasis of Matters paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

This is a statement of fact.

f)

The Company being a Government Company
as dened in section 2(45) of the Companies Act,
2013 is exempted from the applicability of the
provision of the section 164 (2) of the said Act,
vide Circular No. G.S.R. dated 5th June 2015
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

This is a statement of fact.

g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
nancial controls over nancial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, we give our separate report in Annexure
“B”.

This is a statement of fact.

h)

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, we
report as under with respect to other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014:

This is a statement of fact.
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11.
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Management Comments

i.

The Company does not have any pending
litigations which would impact its nancial
position except as disclosed in the nancial
statements;

This is a statement of fact.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; as
such the question of commenting on any
material foreseeable losses thereon does
not arise;

This is a statement of fact.

iii.

There has not been an occasion in case of
the Company, during the year under report
to transfer any sums to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund. The
question of delay in transferring such sums
does not arise.

This is a statement of fact.

iv.

The Company has not provided all requisite
disclosures in its Financial Statements, as to
holdings as well as dealings, in Specied
Bank Notes, during the period from 8th
November 2016 to 30th December 2016,
due to absence of necessary details. As
such, we are unable to comment whether
the same are in accordance with the books
of accounts maintained by the Company.
(Refer Note No. 51 also.)

This is a statement of fact.

We are enclosing our report, in terms of Section 143 (5)
of the Companies Act, 2013, on the basis of such checks
of the books and records of the Company, as we
considered appropriate and according to the information
and explanations given to us, in the Annexure C on the
directions and sub-directions issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India.
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The Company has not been able to
provide the details of the Specied
Bank Notes (SBN) of old 500 / 1000
Rupee currency notes during the
demonetization period (8th Nov 2017
to 30th Dec 2017) due to huge volume
of transactions held at various online
network stations (City booking ofces
and Airport locations).

AIXL
Annexure A referred to in paragraph 9 of the Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Air India
st
Express Limited (formerly known as Air India Charters Limited) for the year ended 31 March, 2017
Sr.No.

I.

Audit Observation

Management Comments

In respect of the xed assets,
a.

The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of xed assets except items of
repairable spares and rotables.

This is a statement of fact.
The Company is maintaining the details
of all repairable spares and rotables
which have been capitalized as a
separate line item under Fixed Asset.
Further, seriality controls are exercised
as per the line item with reference to the
part numbers allocated. The Company
is also charging depreciation accordingly as these items are having life of
more than 2 cycles with span of 10 to 15
years respectively.
This is in line with the Parent Company.

II.

b.

The Company has a program of Physical
Verication of xed assets on rotational basis so
that every asset is veried once every two years
which in our opinion is adequate. As informed to
us, physical verication of xed assets, except
items “rotables and repairable spares”, has been
conducted by the management during the year
and material discrepancies noticed during the
verication were rectied. However, in respect of
rotables & reparable spares, discrepancies, if any,
may have remained undetected & unadjusted.

This is a statement of fact.

c.

According to the information and explanation
given to us and on the basis of examination of the
records of the Company, there are no immovable
properties in the name of the company.

This is a statement of fact.

In respect of inventories, the Company has a
program of physical verication of inventory on
rotational basis so that complete inventory is veried
once every two years. However, it is observed that
physical verication of inventory has not been carried
out since Financial Year 2012-13. Material discrepancies, if any, may have remained undetected &
unadjusted. We are unable to comment upon the
precise nancial impact of the same.
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The company is in the process of
upgrading the Inventory Management
under 5.7 / 5.8 platform through M/s.
Ramco. The process is underway and
likely to be completed in FY 2017-18.
The total process would ensure full
control of inventories by the respective
com-pany.

AIXL
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Audit Observation

Management Comments

III.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, rms or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

This is a statement of fact.

IV.

The Company has not granted any loans, investments,
guarantees and security. As such, question of
complying with provisions of Section 185 and Section
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

This is a statement of fact.

V.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public within the meaning of the sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there or
under any directives report issued by the Reserve
Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of the
Clause (V) of paragraph 3 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 is not applicable to the
Company.

This is a statement of fact.

VI.

The Central Government has not prescribed for
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 for the Company. Therefore,
the provision of the Clause (VI) of paragraph 3 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 is not
applicable to the Company.

This is a statement of fact.

VII.

In respect of the statutory dues:
According to the records of the Company, the
undisputed statutory dues have been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities except for
the following:

This is a statement of fact.

a.

As informed to us and based on explanations
received, the Company has deducted Profession
Tax in respect of few locations. However, the
concerned authority has refused to accept the
payment pending determination of its jurisdiction.
As such there is unpaid amount of Profession Tax
st
as on 31 March 2017 to the extent of Rs.1.24
Million.

The company in the past has made
several attempts to remit the dues to the
Government authorities relating to the
Profession Tax. Since most of the
employees have resigned, the
authorities desired additional and full
details and the same is being collated.
The pending issues would be cleared in
the current nancial year.

b.

Regarding TDS - In absence of proper linkage
between deductions and deposits of Income tax
deducted at source and reconciliations of
balances outstanding and due to recording
expenses on payment basis in the books, year-

The Company has correctly deducted
and paid the Tax dues during the FY
st
2016-17. TDS liability as on 31 March
2017 was also paid to the Government
authority by 20th June 2017.
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end recording of expenses in books, we are not
able to offer any comments, including delay if any.
c.

Regarding non-reversal of service tax input
credit under Rule 6 (3) of Cenvat Credit Rules,
2004 – Company is not maintaining separate
books of accounts for exempted and taxable
services respectively. As such, Rule 6 (3) of
Cenvat Credit Rules, 2004 requires the Company
to pay an amount equal to 7% of value of
exempted service reverse or shall pay an
amount equivalent to the CENVAT credit
attributable to input services used in, or in
relation to provision of exempted services
subject to the conditions and procedure
specied in sub-rule (3A). In absence of
adequate details, adequacy or otherwise of
such reversal cannot be ascertained and we
are unable to form an opinion on the same.

The matter has been referred to Service
Tax consultant and suitable action is
being initiated during the FY 2017-18.

d.

In respect of the statutory dues, if any, at
foreign stations not covered during the audit,
since the records are kept at respective
stations and which were not available for
verication during the audit, we are unable to
comment whether the dues are timely
deposited.

There had not been any default in
making payment of the Statutory dues
at any foreign stations.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of above clauses except for
Profession Tax, as mentioned in clause (a)
st
above, were in arrears, as at 31 March, 2017
for a period of more than six months from the
date on which they became payable.

This is a statement of fact.

According to the records of the Company and
information and explanation given to us, there
are no dues outstanding in respect of Income
Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Cess or other
statutory dues on account of any dispute, for
more than 6 months, except as mentioned
below:

These matters are being adequately
represented by the Tax consultants of
the Company. The company is of the
rm opinion that such amount is not
payable. As a matter of prudence,
same has been disclosed in the
Contingent Liability.

e.
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Sr. Name
No. of
Statute

Amount
(Rs. in
Million)

Nature and
forum where
dispute is
pending

1.

Tax deducted
at Source as
per Income
tax for
Financial
Year 2009-17

2.

Service Tax
for Financial
Year 20052017

835.04

3.

Service Tax
for Financial
Year 20142016

24.41

CESTAT

4.

Customs Duty
for various
transactions

17.18

Commissioner
of Customs,
Cochin.

Total
f.

3.27

Management Comments

Income Tax
department

Commissioner
(Appeal)

879.90

According to the information and explanation
given to us, company is not covered under the
Investor Education and Protection Fund and
Employees State Insurance.

This is a statement of fact.

VIII.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to
nancial institutions, banks or dues to debenture
holders. Further, no loans or borrowings were taken
from government.

This is a statement of fact.

IX.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company did not raise
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the
year. Therefore, the provision of the Clause (IX) of

This is a statement of fact.
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paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 is not applicable to the Company.
X.

As explained to us and according to information and
explanation given to us during the course of audit, we
have not observed any fraud by the company or any
fraud on the company by its ofcers or employees during
the year.

This is a statement of fact.

XI.

As per the Notication GSR 463(E) of Ministry of
th
Corporate Affairs, Dated 5 June 2015, Section 197 of
the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to
Government Companies. Therefore, the provision of the
Clause (V) of paragraph 3 of the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2015 is not applicable to the Company.

This is a statement of fact.

XII.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company; therefore clause
XII of this order is not applicable.

This is a statement of fact.

XIII.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, all transactions with
related parties are in compliances with the section 177 &
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Accounting Standards.

This is a statement of fact.

XIV.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

This is a statement of fact.

XV.

According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not entered into any noncash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him.

This is a statement of fact.

XVI.

The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

This is a statement of fact.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Air India Express Limited (formerly known as Air India Charters Limited):
Sr.No.

1.

Audit Observation

Management Comments

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

This is a statement of fact.

We have audited the internal nancial controls over
nancial reporting of Air India Charters Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our
audit of the standalone nancial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
2.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

This is a statement of fact.

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal nancial
controls based on the internal control over nancial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal nancial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efcient
conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable
nancial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
3.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal nancial controls over nancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal nancial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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This is a statement of fact.
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Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal nancial
controls over nancial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
nancial controls system over nancial reporting and
their operating effectiveness and to obtain an
understanding of internal nancial controls over
nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the nancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufcient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
nancial controls system over nancial reporting.
4.

Meaning of Internal
Financial Reporting

Financial

Controls

over

A Company's internal nancial control over nancial
reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
nancial reporting and the preparation of nancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal nancial control over nancial
reporting includes those policies and procedures
that
1)

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company;
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This is a statement of fact.
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2)

provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of nancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
nancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

This is a statement of fact.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
nancial controls over nancial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal nancial
controls over nancial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal nancial
control over nancial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
6.

Opinion
According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on our audit, the material
weaknesses have been identied in the Company's
internal nancial controls over nancial reporting as
at March 31, 2017 in respect of
a)

Accounting of Inventory: The Company did not
have an adequate internal control system for
inventory with regard to receipts, issue for
consumption and physical verication and
valuation of the same. These could potentially
result in material misstatements in the
Company's trade payables, consumption,
inventory and expense account balances.
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During the period 2015-16, the parent
company has signed a contract with
M/s. RAMCO for upgrading the
software to 5.7 / 5.8 version which
would take care of all the issues /
observations raised. AIXL has borne
1/3rd of the cost for the upgradation.

AIXL
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Management Comments
The required control on recording,
reporting and accounting are
exercised by the Parent company for
all the group companies through
RAMCO system by MMD. Periodical
reports are generated from the
RAMCO system accordingly.
Physical verication of the Inventories
would be carried out in consultation
with Parent Company on completion
of the project through an external
professional rm if required. The
outcome of the project is estimated
during the FY 2017-18.

b)

During FY 2015-16, AIXL has
changed the signicant accounting
policy in respect of Repairable
spares:

Accounting of repairable spares

a.

In line with the accounting policy
adopted by the Parent company.

b.

The repairable are having life term
of more than 2/3 cycles.

c.

These items are serially numbered and adequate controls are
exercised accordingly.

d.

These items are considered as
having life span of 10 year and
depreciation is charged accordingly.

c)

Controls over planning
nancial closing process.

of

This is a Statement of Fact.
However, the observation of Audit is
noted and necessary action would be
taken during FY 2017-18

d)

Controls over spreadsheets used in nancial
closing process.

This is a Statement of Fact.
However, the observation of Audit is
noted and necessary action would be
taken during FY 2017-18.

and

monitoring
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Procedural compliances in respect of statutory
dues/liabilities in respect of Indirect Tax and
Direct Tax.

The Company has correctly deducted
and paid the Tax dues during FY 201617.
Also the TDS and Service Tax
liability as on 31.03.2017 has been
discharged in full and there is no
outstanding liability.

f)

Controls related
accounts.

to

entries

in

migration

g)

Review controls over Accounts Payable.

A 'material weakness' is a deciency, or a
combination of deciencies, in internal nancial
control over nancial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual nancial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
In our opinion, the Company has, except for the
effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses
described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, in all material
respects, maintained adequate internal nancial
controls over nancial reporting as of March 31,
2017, based on the internal control over nancial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, and except for effects/possible effects of the
material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the
Company's internal nancial controls over nancial
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31,
2017.
We have considered the material weaknesses
identied and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in

77

This is a statement of Fact. However,
the observation of Audit is noted and
necessary action would be taken
during FY 2017-18.
This is a statement of Fact. However,
the observation of Audit is noted and
necessary action would be taken
during FY 2017-18.
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our audit of the March 31, 2017 standalone nancial
statements of the Company, and these material
weaknesses has affected our opinion on the nancial
statements of the Company and we have issued a
qualied opinion on the standalone nancial
statements.
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AIXL
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2017
Particulars
I.

(Rupees in Million)

Note No.

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
Shareholders' Funds
a) Share Capital
b) Reserves and Surplus

2
3

As at March 31, 2017

7,800.00
(17,794.14)

As at March 31, 2016

7,800.00
(20,740.72)
(9,994.14)

Non-current Liabilities
a) Long Term Borrowings
b) Long Term Provisions

4
5.1

8,253.71
73.12

(12,940.72)
12,323.73
56.11

8,326.83
Current Liabilities
a) Short Term Borrowings
b) Trade Payables
c) Other Current Liabilities
d) Short Term Provisions

II.

6
7.1
7.2
5.2

TOTAL
ASSETS :
Non-current Assets
a) Fixed Assets
(i)
Tangible Assets
(ii)
Intangible Assets
(iii) Capital Work-in-Progress
(iv) Intangible Assets under
development
b)

Long Term Loans and Advances

13,899.54
10,754.69
14,998.73
9.50

12,379.84
10,432.96
9,173.76
19,318.10
5.80

39,662.46

38,930.62

37,995.15

38,369.74

8

9.1

30,347.95
1.00
-

31,778.14
0.94
-

30,348.95
286.84

31,779.08
340.64
30,635.79

Current Assets
a) Short Term Loans and Advances
b) Inventories
c) Trade Receivables
d) Cash and Bank Balances
e) Other Current Assets

9.2
10
11
12
13

3,084.41
2,081.16
624.04
1,565.63
4.12

TOTAL

32,119.72
3,008.20
1,707.71
580.95
950.94
2.22

7,359.36

6,250.02

37,995.15

38,369.74

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
1
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 23-56
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of
For and on behalf of the Board
Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 105215W / W100057

Sd/Ashwani Lohani
Chairman

Sd/Angshumali Rastogi
Director

Sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Director

Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

Sd/K.Shyam Sundar
Chief Executive Ofcer

Sd/M.Manoharan
Chief Financial Ofcer

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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AIXL
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

Note No.

Revenue
1. Revenue from Operation
i) Scheduled Trafc Services
ii) Non-Schedule Trafc Services
2. Handling, Servicing and Incidental Revenue
Operating Revenue
II
Other Income
III
Total Revenue
(I+II)
IV
Expenses
1. Aircraft Fuel & Oil
2. Operation Expenses
3. Employees Benet Expenses
4. Finance Cost
5. Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
6. Other Expenses
7. Prior Period Adjustments (Net)
Total Expenses
V
Proﬁt before Exceptional and Extraordinary (III-IV)
Items and Tax
VI
Exceptional Items
VII Proﬁt before Extraordinary Items and Tax
(V-VI)
VIII Extra Ordinary Items
IX
Proﬁt before Tax
(VII-VIII)
X
Tax Expenses :
XI
Proﬁt / (Loss) after Tax for the year
(IX-X)
XII Earning per Share of Rs. 10 each
i) Basic
ii) Diluted

2016-2017

2015-2016

I

Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies

14

15
16

33,083.23
29,097.80
175.69 33,258.92
40.42
33,299.34
255.99
33,555.33

29,097.80
66.62
29,164.42
335.85
29,500.27

8,424.69
12,678.66
2,115.07
2,938.01
2,938.77
1,677.15
(184.47)
30,587.88
2,967.45

6,758.51
9,929.77
1,890.07
3,279.31
2,407.37
1,475.76
142.66
25,883.45
3,616.82

2,967.45
2,967.45
2,967.45

3,616.82
3,616.82
3,616.82

38.04
38.04

46.37
46.37

17
18
19
20
21
22

46
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
This is the statement of Prot & Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For and on behalf of

For and on behalf of the Board

Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 105215W / W100057

Sd/Ashwani Lohani
Chairman

Sd/Angshumali Rastogi
Director

Sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Director

Sd/K.Shyam Sundar
Chief Executive Ofcer

Sd/M.Manoharan
Chief Financial Ofcer

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162
Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
Particulars

2016-17

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Proﬁt /(-) Loss Before Taxation
Adjustments for :
Depreciation
Finance Cost
(Prot)/Loss on sale of Assets
Assets Written off
Interest on Bank & Other Deposits

2015-16
2,967.45

2,938.77
2,938.01
683.39
(30.91)

Cash surplus/(-) deﬁcit before variation in Net Working

Changes in Working Capital
(-) Increase / Decrease in Trade Receivable
(-) Increase / Decrease in Loans & Advances-Long Term
(-) Increase / Decrease in Loans & Advances-Short Term
(-) Increase/Decrease in Other Assets
(-) Increase / Decrease in Inventories
Increase /(-)Decrease in Current Liabilities & Provisions
Long Term provision
Trade payables
Other Current Liabilities
Short Term provision
Net cash (-)outﬂow / Inﬂow from Operations
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Interest received on Bank & Other Deposits
Net cash (-) outﬂow / Inﬂow from Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance Cost
Issue of Share Capital
Write back of excess Tax of earlier year
Repayment of Aircraft Loans
Net cash (-)outﬂow / Inﬂow from Financing Activities
Foreign Exchange Impact of Working capital Loan
Foreign Exchange Impact of Aircraft Loan
Net Increase / (-)Decrease in Cash & Cash equivalents
Add : Cash at the beginning of the year
Cash at the end of the year
1

(Rupees in Million)

3,616.82
2,407.37
3,279.31

6,529.26
9,496.71

(15.15)

(43.09)
53.81
(76.21)
(1.90)
(373.45)

66.34
9.73
(769.87)
6.88
168.93

17.02
1,580.93
(4,319.37)
3.70

(73.24)
(658.67)
(664.69)
0.68
(3,158.56)
6,338.15

(2,395.69)
30.91

5,671.53
9,288.35

(1,913.91)
7,374.44
(563.15)
15.15

(2,364.78)
(2,938.01)
(3,815.36)

(548.00)
(3,279.31)
(3,549.37)

(6,753.37)
(3,211.93)
(182.76)
614.69
950.94
1,565.63

(6,828.68)
(1,062.11)
1,002.88
57.00
893.94
950.94

The cash ow statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting St andard 3 (AS-3) on 'Cash
Flow Statements' and presents cash ows from operating, investing and nancing activities.

For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 105215W / W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Ashwani Lohani
Chairman

Sd/Angshumali Rastogi
Director

Sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Director

Sd/K.Shyam Sundar
Chief Executive Ofcer

Sd/M.Manoharan
Chief Financial Ofcer

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017
NOTE “1”: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Air India Express Limited (Formerly known as Air India Charters Limited) [CIN No:
U62100MH1971GOI015328] is a wholly owned subsidiary of Air India Limited. It commenced
airline operations on April 29, 2005 with a brand name “Air India Express”.
The Company mainly operates between Tier-2 and Tier-3 cities in India and destinations in Gulf
& South East Asia. As at the year end, Company has a eet of 17 Boeing 737-800 NG owned
aircraft and 6 Boeing 737-800 NG leased aircraft.

B.

ACCOUNTING CONVENTION
i.

Basis of Preparation
These Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern concept on accrual basis,
(except as stated elsewhere), under historical cost convention, and are in compliance with
generally accepted accounting principles and the Accounting Standards notied under the
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014.

ii.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of nancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent liabilities at the date
of the nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Differences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which results are known / materialized.

iii.

Operating Cycle
The Company being in service sector, there is no specic operating cycle; 12 months'
period has been adopted as “the Operating Cycle” in-terms of the provisions of Schedule III
to the Companies Act 2013.

C.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.

FIXED ASSETS
i.

Fixed Assets (including major components) are stated at cost including incidental costs
incurred pertaining to the acquisition and bringing them to the location for use and
interest on loans borrowed where applicable, upto the date of putting the concerned
asset to use.

ii.

Aircraft Rotables and Repairables, are shown as xed assets.

iii.

Expenditure on major modernization /modication /conversion
resulting in increased efciency/economic life is capitalized.
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iv.

Assets under leases, in respect of which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the Company, are considered as Finance Leases and are
capitalized.

v.

“Physical Veriﬁcation of Assets”
Physical Verication of Assets is done on a rotational basis so that every asset is
veried in every two years and the discrepancies observed in the course of the
verication are adjusted in the year in which report is submitted.

vi.

“Assets held for Sale”
In respect of assets held with an intention to sale, a net book value of the asset is
transferred from block of xed assets to “Assets held for Sale”, when the sale
becomes highly probable are classied as Current Assets.

2.

DEPRECIATION / AMORTIZATION
Depreciation is provided on all assets on straight-line method over the useful life of assets as
prescribed in the Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013, keeping a residual value of 5% of the
original cost except for the assets given below as the life of these assets are not prescribed in
Schedule II.
I.

Rotables:
Aircraft Rotables relating to 737-800 aircraft are depreciated over the residual average
useful life of the aircraft eet of 20 years.
Depreciation on additions to “Rotables” and “Other Fixed Assets” is provided for the full
year in the year of acquisition and no depreciation is provided in the year of disposal.
Purchases of Aircraft Repairables on or after 1st April 2015, the useful life has been
st
estimated at 10 years however incases of opening balance, as on 1 April 2015, all such
repairables, spares the remaining useful life has been estimated at 5 years.
The useful life of assets is given hereunder:
Sr. No.

Type of Asset

1.

Aircraft Fleet & Equipment

2.

Airframe Engine
l
l
l
l
l

3

Life prescribed by Schedule II
(in years)
20

LLP
Engine Hot and Core Section
Engine Cold Section
Frame and other Components of the engine
QEC Kits

Simulators & Link Trainers

8-20

20
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3.

Sr. No.

Type of Asset

Life Prescribed by Schedule II
(in years)

4

Airframe / Aero-Engine Rotables

20

5

Repairables

10

6

Vehicles

8

7

Computer Systems

3

8

Electrical Fittings

10

9

Furniture & Fixtures

10

10

Ofce Equipment

5

11

Plant & Machinery

15

12

Workshop Equipment

15

ii.

Major modications/refurbishment, modernization/conversion carried to leased assets are
shown under improvement to leasehold assets and amortized over the balance period of
lease.

iii.

Intangible assets which have a useful economic life are amortized over the estimated useful
life.

INVENTORIES
i.

Inventories are valued at weighted average cost.

ii.

Expendables/consumables are charged off at the time of initial issue except those meant for
repairs of repairable items which are expensed when the work order is closed.

iii.

Obsolescence provision for aircraft stores and spare parts:
a.

Provision is made for the non-moving inventory exceeding a period of ve years (net of
realizable value of 5%) except for (b) below and netted off from the value of inventory.

b.

Inventory of Aircraft Fleet which has been phased out, is shown at estimated realizable
value unless the same can be used in other aircraft.

iv.

Obsolescence provision for non-aircraft stores and spares is made for the non-moving
inventory exceeding a period of ve years.

v.

Spares retrieved from the cannibalization of the scrapped aircraft are taken into stock at
zero value.
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4.

MANUFACTURER'S CREDIT
Manufacturer's credit entitlements are recognized as 'Incidental Revenue' on accrual basis by
treating the same as 'Advances', which is adjusted when such entitlements are used to discharge
the liability relating to acquisition of assets or incurring of expenditure.

5.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
i.

Passenger Revenue is recognized on own basis. At the year end, the value of advance
passenger sales is assessed as forward sales. Subsequent refunds/unclaimed tickets are
recognized in the year of refund/ cancellation.

ii.

Loss or gain on reissue/refund/involuntary transfer of passengers to other carriers is
deducted or included as the case may be in the revenue.

iii.

Blocked Space arrangements/Code share revenue/expenditure is recognized on an actual
basis, based on uplift data received from the code share partners. Wherever details from
code share partners are not available, Blocked Space arrangements/Code share revenue/
expenditure is recognized to the extent of documents/information received, and adjustments
required, are carried out at the time of such information being received.

iv.

Income from Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis.

v.

The claims receivable from Insurance Company are accounted for on the acceptance by the
Insurance Company.

vi.

Warranty claims /credit notes received from vendors are recognized on acceptance of
claim/receipt of credit note.

vii.

Other Operating Revenue is recognized when goods are delivered or services are rendered
during the year.

viii. Gain or loss arising out of sale/scrap of Fixed Assets including aircraft over the net
depreciated value is taken to Statement of Prot & Loss as Non-Operating Revenue or
Expenses.
ix.
6.

Other items of revenue are accounted on accrual basis.

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Debts are provided for if they are either more than three years old or specically
identied as doubtful even within three years. However, in respect of debts pertaining to Govt.,
whether State or Central Departments or Public Sector undertakings which are known to be
recoverable with certainty, are not provided for, in spite of their age exceeding three years.

7.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Foreign Currency Monetary Items:
i.

The Company has opted for accounting the exchange differences arising on reporting of
long-term foreign currency monetary items in line with Accounting Standards notied under
the Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014 pertaining to AS-11 notied by the Govt. of India on 31st March 2009 (as
amended on 29th December 2011) and further as amended from time to time.
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ii.
8.

9.

a.

Accordingly, the effect of exchange differences arising on settlement or reporting of
long term monetary items at the rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the period, or reported in previous nancial statements, is accounted
as addition or deduction to the cost of the assets so far as it relates to acquisition of
depreciable capital assets and is depreciated over the balance useful life of the
concerned asset and in other cases such difference is accumulated by transfer to
“Foreign Currency Monetary Items Translation Difference Account” to be amortized over
the balance period of such long term Assets or Liability.

b.

Foreign currency monetary items other than those identied as long term at the yearend are converted at the year-end exchange rate circulated by Foreign Exchange
Dealers Association of India (FEDAI), and the gains/losses arising out of uctuations in
exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of Prot and Loss.

Exchange variation is not considered at the year-end in respect of Debts and Loans &
Advances for which doubtful provision exists since they are not expected to be realized.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
i.

Short term employee's benets are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount
in the Prot and Loss Account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii.

Post-employment benets are recognized as an expense in the Prot and Loss Account for
the year in which employee has rendered services. The estimated liability on account of
long term benets is discounted to the current value using the yield on government bonds
as the discounting rate.

iii.

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post-employment and other long term benets are
charged to the Prot and Loss Account.

BORROWING COST
i.

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction of qualifying assets
including capital work–in-progress are capitalized upto the date of commencement of
commercial use of the assets.

ii.

Borrowing costs other than stated above are treated as period costs.

10. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset has been impaired. If any such indication exists, the provision for impairment is made in
accordance with AS-28.
11. OPERATING LEASE
i.

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets are classied as Operating Lease and Lease rental payable
for the year is charged to Statement of Prot and Loss. In respect of leases which have
been extended by paying a termination/release sum, by which the Company acquires a
residual right in the aircraft, such amount is amortized over the remaining useful life of the
aircraft determined by ying hours.
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ii.

Contributions made to lessors on account of Maintenance Reserve for which, maintenance is
expected to arise during the lease period is treated as Expense.

12. TAX ON INCOME
Provision for current tax is made in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between book and taxable prot using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.
The Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a virtual
certainty based on operational and nancial restructuring, revenue generation and cost reduction
programme of the Company that the assets will be realised in the future.
13. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & CONTINGENT ASSETS
i.

Provisions involving a substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be
an outow of resources.

ii.

Contingent liabilities are not provided for and are stated by way of notes to accounts. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their
existence is conrmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

iii.

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the nancial statements.

14. OTHER LIABILITIES
Liabilities which are more than three years old are written back under the head “Provision no
Longer Required Written Back” unless such liabilities are specically known to be payable in the
future.
15. PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS
The Income and Expenditure which arise in the current period as a result of errors and
omissions in preparation of nancial statements of one or more prior period are considered as
Prior Period Items and are shown separately in the nancial statements.
16. PREPAID EXPENSES/LIABILITY FOR EXPENSES
Pre-paid Expenses/Liabilities for expenses are recognized as under:
a)

Foreign Stations – Rs. 50,000/- and above in each case.

b)

Domestic Stations – Rs 10,000/- and above in each case.

17. CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby prot before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash ows from regular operating, nancing and investing activities of
the Company are segregated.
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NOTE "2" : SHARE CAPITAL

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

AUTHORISED
80.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
(Previous Year : 80.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)
TOTAL
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP SHARES
78.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each
(Previous Year : 78.0 Million Equity Shares of Rs.100 each)
(The entire Share Capital is held by Air India Limited)
TOTAL

2.1

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
March 31, 2016

8,000.00

8,000.00

8,000.00

8,000.00

7,800.00

7,800.00

7,800.00

7,800.00

Share holding more than 5% of Equity Share Capital and Shares held by HoldingUltimate Holding Company

Name of the Shareholder

Air India Limited
(including shares held by nominee
shareholders)

As at March 31, 2017
No.of Shares

% of Holding

78.0 Million

100

As at March 31, 2016
No.of Shares

78.0 Million

% of Holding

100

2.2

The Company has only one class of share having face value of Rs.100/- each with equal
rights of voting and dividend.

2.3

There was no issue of shares during the year.

2.4

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting
period is as given below :
(Number of Shares in Million)
Particulars

Equity Shares
(face value Rs.100/- each):
At the beginning of the period
Add : Allotted during the period
At the end of the period

2016-17

2015-16

78.00
78.00

78.00
78.00

(Share Value Rupees in Million)
2016-17

7,800.00
7,800.00

2015-16

7,800.00
7,800.00

2.5

During last ve years no shares were issued as Bonus shares on capitalization of Reserves and
Surplus.

2.6

No shares were bought back in the last ve years.
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NOTE "3" : RESERVES AND SURPLUS
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31, 2016

1. CAPITAL RESERVE
Balance as per Last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Less : Transfer to the Statement of Prot and Loss as

301.72

322.63

-

-

20.90

20.90

280.82

301.73

(21,042.45)

(24,659.26)

2,967.49

3,616.82

-

-

(18,074.96)

(21,042.45)

(17,794.14)

(20,740.72)

reduction from Depreciation (Refer Note 20)
Closing Balance
2. Surplus / (Deﬁcit) in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
Balance as per last nancial statements
(Loss)/ Prot for the year
Less : Appropriations
Net deﬁcit in the Statement of Proﬁt and Loss
TOTAL (1+2)

NOTE "4" : LONG TERM BORROWINGS
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

I.

As at March 31, 2017

Bonds / Debentures

As at March 31, 2016

950.00

950.00

7,303.71

11,373.73

8,253.71

12,323.73

950 @ 9.38% Redeemable, Non-convertible Debentures
of face value of Rs.10 lakhs each (Unsecured)
(Redeemable on 26th March 2020)
(Fully Guaranteed by the Government of India)
II. Finance Lease Obligations
TOTAL
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4.1 Bonds/Debentures
950 Redeemable, Unsecured Non-convertible Debentures of face value of Rs.1 Million each (Previous
Year : 950 Debentures), are guaranteed by Government of India. Debentures are redeemable on 26th
March 2020. Maturity Prole and Rate of interest of Non-Convertible Debentures are set out below :
(Rupees in Million)
Rate of
Interest

Payment Due
Upto

Repayment
Mode

Security

Number of
Instalment
Balance

9.38%

26 March 2020

Bullet

GOI Guarantee

N.A.

4.2 Finance Lease Obligations of Rs. 11,132.54 Million (Previous Year 15,130.70 Million) are guaranteed by
the Government of India to the extent of Rs. 11,132.54 Million (Previous Year Rs.15,130.70 Million).
The Finance Lease obligation of Rs. 11,127.30 Million includes Current maturities of nance lease
obligation of Rs.3,828.83 Million.
(Rupees in Million)
Name of
Loan

Exim Tr. I
Exim Tr. II
I
Exim Tr. III

Rate of Interest

Security

Number of
Instalment
Balance as on
31.03.2017

Amount
Payable
0-5 Years

Fixed for each
loan ranging
between 2.46%
to 2.73%

Asset based
nance structure

46

Libor +0.5 / 0.75

& GOI Guarantee

29

3,145.77

19

3,146.98

Amount
Payable
beyond 5
Years

4,839.79
Nil

Libor + 0.93

TOTAL

11,132.54

Current Maturities of long term borrowings have been grouped under the head Other Current
Liabilities (Refer Note 7.2).

NOTE "5.1" : LONG TERM PROVISIONS
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March
31, 2017

As at March
31, 2016

Provision for Employee Beneﬁts
a)

Gratuity

b)

Leave Encashment
TOTAL
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65.55

45.79

7.57

10.32

73.12

56.11
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NOTE "5.2" : SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

(Rupees in Million)
As at March 31, 2017

Particulars

Provision for Employee Beneﬁts
a) Gratuity
b) Leave Encashment

8.42
1.08
9.50

TOTAL

As at March 31, 2016

3.57
2.23
5.80

Note: As per direction of Parent Company, Trade Payables include Provision for Expenses to the extent of
Rs. 570.06 Million (Previous year Rs. 1355.02 Million). Refer Note 7.b given below.
NOTE "6" : SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

I Loans repayable on demand :
a) From Banks denominated in foreign currencies (Unsecured)
b) From Banks denominated in foreign currencies
(Unsecured Buyer's Credit)
c) From Banks denominated in Indian Rupees (Unsecured)
d) From Other Parties (Secured)
e) From Other Parties (Unsecured)
II Other Loans & Advances
a) From Banks denominated in Indian Rupees
TOTAL

1,283.49

1,303.70

3,242.50
5,450.00
-

5,172.81
-

3,923.55
13,899.54

3,956.45
10,432.96

NOTE "7" : TRADE PAYABLES & OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Particulars

7.1

7.2

As at March 31, 2016

(Rupees in Million)
As at March
31, 2017

As at March
31, 2016

Trade Payables
(a) Related Parties
(b) Others
(Refer Note No.26 regarding MSME, Note 7.a & 7.b)

37.60
10,717.09

301.44
8,872.32

(A)

10,754.69

9,173.76

3,828.83
18.10
3,465.33
197.72

2,498.17
3,756.93
23.75
4,069.21
182.95

6,467.76
1,020.99
14,998.73
25,753.42

7,715.36
1,071.73
19,318.10
28,491.86

Other current liabilities
a) Term Loans from Banks (Secured)
b) Current maturities of nance lease obligations
c) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
d) Forward Sales (Net) [Passenger]
e) Advance from customers (Net)
f) Others Liabilities (Net)
i) Payable to Air India Ltd. (Holding Company)
ii) Payable to others (Refer Note 7.c)
(B)
TOTAL (A + B)

7.a Trade Payables includes payables for goods purchased, services received and other expenses incurred.
7.b As per direction of Parent Company, Trade Payables include Provision for Expenses to the extent of Rs.
570.06 Million (Previous year Rs. 1355.02 Million)
7.c Others includes Statutory Dues which include Service Tax Output Liability Rs. 36.07 Million (Previous
year Rs. 0.62 Million) and Input Tax credit against Service tax as Reverse Charge (RCM) Rs. 6.01 Million
(Previous Year Nil).
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NOTE "8" : FIXED ASSETS
Sl.
No.

Particulars

(Rupees in Million)

GROSS BLOCK
As at
Additions Deductions /
As at
April 01,
Adjustments March 31,
2016
2017

As at
April 01,
2016

DEPRECIATION
For
Deductions/ Total Upto
the year Adjustments March 31,
2017

NET BLOCK
As at
As at
March 31, March 31,
2017
2016

TANGIBLE ASSETS :
A. AIRCRAFT FLEET &
ROTABLES
1

2

Airframes
(a) Owned & Self Operated

28,365.52

-

125.34

28,240.18

9,966.25

1,432.55

-

11,398.80

16,841.38

(b) Leased & Self Operated

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,399.27
-

Aero Engines & Power Plants

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

233.69

-

1,834.71

2,819.48

2,856.04

(a) Owned & Self Operated
(Refer Note no. 24 & 40)

-

-

-

-

-

4,457.06

197.14

-

4,654.20

1,601.02

Engine Hot and Core Section

5,190.75 1,198.44

1,051.93

5,337.26

1,864.57

664.93

368.54

2,160.96

3,176.31

3,326.18

Engine Cold Section

7,786.13

344.38

-

8,130.51

2,796.86

408.24

-

3,205.10

4,925.42

4,989.27

394.28

17.44

57.42

354.30

141.63

19.85

-

161.48

192.82

252.65

60.34

-

-

60.34

26.27

2.87

-

29.14

31.20

34.07

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

440.01

-

-

440.01

138.29

20.90

-

159.19

280.82

301.72

1,755.02

461.63

-

2,216.65

660.46

102.31

-

762.77

1,453.88

1,094.56

180.78

-

-

180.78

55.50

9.04

-

64.54

116.23

125.27

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

402.32

173.15

-

575.47

33.69

54.08

-

87.77

487.70

368.63

49,032.21 2,392.18

1,234.69

50,189.70

17,284.54

2,948.46

368.54

19,864.46

30,325.24

31,747.67

LLP

Frame and other Components
of the engine
QEC Kits
(b) Leased & Self Operated
3

Simulators & Link Trainers

4

Airframe Rotables

5

Aero-Engine Rotables

6

Simulator Rotables

7

Repairables
SUB TOTAL "A"

B. VEHICLES
1

Vehicles

9.03

-

-

9.03

8.57

0.01

-

8.58

0.45

0.47

SUB TOTAL "B"

9.03

-

-

9.03

8.57

0.01

-

8.58

0.45

0.47

37.84
-

-

-

37.84
-

21.46
-

7.07
-

-

Machinery and Plants

28.53
-

9.32
-

16.38
-

2

Ground Support & Ramp Equipment

22.28

-

-

22.28

19.74

0.79

-

20.53

1.75

2.54

3

Furniture & Fixtures

9.21

0.16

-

9.37

4.29

1.24

-

5.53

3.84

4.92

C. OTHER- FIXED ASSETS
1

Workshop Equipment, Instruments,

4

Electrical Fittings & Installations

5

Computer System

6

Ofce Appliances & Equipment
SUB TOTAL "C"

TOTAL FOR TANGIBLE ASSETS

0.08

0.07

-

0.15

0.03

0.02

-

0.05

0.10

0.05

19.51

3.00

-

22.51

17.72

0.63

-

18.35

4.16

1.79

12.21

0.21

-

12.42

7.90

1.44

-

9.34

3.09

4.32

101.13

3.44

-

104.57

71.14

11.19

-

82.33

22.26

30.00

49,142.38 2,395.62

1,234.69

50,303.31

17,364.25

2,959.66

368.54

19,955.37

30,347.95

31,778.14

INTANGIBLE ASSETS :
0.07

-

9.49

8.485

0.007

-

8.49

1.00

0.94

TOTAL ASSETS

A. COMPUTER SOFTWARE

49,151.80 2,395.69

9.42

1,234.69

50,312.80

17,372.73

2,959.67

368.54

19,963.86

30,348.95

31,779.08

Previous Year

47,585.78 1,566.02

-

49,151.80

14,944.45

2,428.27

-

17,372.72

31,779.08

32,641.33

8.1 Addition to and deductions from "Aircraft Fleet and Rotables" includes Exchange Rate Fluctuations on
underlying loans in foreign currency :reduction Rs. 182.76 Million (Previous year Rs.1002.88 Million).
8.2 Aircraft Fleet and Rotables include 21 Aircraft (Previous Year : 17 Aircraft) B737-800 (Registration No's
VT-AXH,AXI,AXJ,AXM,AXN,AXP,AXQ,AXR,AXT,AXU,AXW,AXX,AXZ,AYA,AYB,AYC and AYD)
acquired on nance lease & continue to be in the name of SPV company for which benecial ownership
lies with Air India Charters Limited. Gross Block : Rs.28,240.18 Million (Previous Year : Rs. 28,365.52
Million), Depreciation:Rs.11,398.80 Million (Previous Year Rs.9,966.25 Million), Net Block : Rs.16,841.38
Million (Previous Year : Rs. 18,399.27 Million). Future Lease rental obligation aggregate to Rs.11,132.54
Million (Previous Year : Rs.15,130.7 Million) for which liability of an equal amount is included in the year
end balance of Future Lease Obligation.
8.3 Depreciation on Simulator during the year amounting to Rs. 20.9 Million (Previous Year : 20.9 Million) has
been adjusted from Capital Reserve created for Capitalization of Simulator.
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NOTE "9" : LOANS AND ADVANCES
(1) LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

Unsecured Considered Good
Security Deposits
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

As at March 31, 2016

(A)

271.20
271.20

271.88
271.88

(B)
TOTAL (A + B)

15.64
15.64
286.84

68.76
68.76
340.64

Other Loans and Advances
Prepaid Expenses
Balances with Statutory / Government Authorities

(2) SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

Unsecured Considered Good
(i)
Security Deposits
(ii)
Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind
(iii)
Loans and Advances to Employees
Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

As at March 31, 2016

(A)

23.82
2,574.82
23.05
2,621.69

17.06
2,514.81
24.90
2,556.77

(B)
TOTAL (A + B)

462.72
462.72
3,084.41

451.43
451.43
3,008.20

Other Loans and Advances
Prepaid Expenses

NOTE "10" : INVENTORIES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

Stores and Spare Parts
Loose Tools
Less : Provision for Obsolescence/Inventory Reconciliation
Goods-in-Transit
Outstation Purchases for India
TOTAL
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2,467.09
7.29
2,474.38
(417.56)
2,056.82
24.34
2,081.16

As at March 31, 2016

1,948.70
2.16
1,950.86
(237.05)
1,713.81
(6.10)
1,707.71

AIXL
NOTE "11" : TRADE RECEIVABLES

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars
As at March 31, 2017

(i)

Receivable from Related Parties
Unsecured, Considered Good
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables

(ii)

Other Receivables
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables
TOTAL

As at March 31, 2016

-

25.07
25.07
25.07

624.04
50.62
674.66
(50.62)
624.04

555.88
50.62
606.50
(50.62)
580.95

NOTE : "12" : CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents
1. Balances with Banks :
a) On Current Accounts
b) Deposit Accounts (Maturity less than 3 months)
2. Cash on Hand (as certied by the Management)
3. Remittances in Transit
(A)
Other Bank Balances
Margin money deposits
(I) Under lien against Margin Money with SBI
(ii) Under lien against Bank Guarantee with SCB
(B)
TOTAL (A + B)

(Rupees in Million)
As at March 31, 2016

882.04
1.47
58.01
941.52

522.66
2.01
66.06
590.73

4.54
619.57
624.11
1,565.63

4.54
355.67
360.21
950.94

NOTE "13" : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

1. Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposit
2. Others
TOTAL
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As at March 31, 2016

4.12

2.01

-

0.21

4.12

2.22

AIXL
NOTE "14" : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

2016-17

2015-16

32,039.71

28,397.37

623.56

456.04

-

-

419.96

244.39

(A)

33,083.23

29,097.80

(B)

175.69

-

TOTAL (A + B)

33,258.92

29,097.80

Scheduled Trafﬁc Services
1.

Passenger

2.

Excess Baggage

3.

Mail

4.

Cargo

Non Scheduled Trafﬁc Services
Block Seat Arrangement

NOTE "15" : HANDLING, SERVICING AND INCIDENTAL REVENUE
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.

Handling and Servicing

2.

Incidental

2016-17

TOTAL

2015-16

-

10.40

40.42

56.22

40.42

66.62

NOTE "16" : OTHER REVENUE
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.
2.

2016-17

Interest Income on Bank Deposit
Provision for Obsolescence (Net)
TOTAL

30.91
225.08
255.99

NOTE "17" : OPERATING EXPENSES

10.

15.15
320.70
335.85
(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

2015-16

2016-17

Insurance
Material Consumed - Aircraft
Outside Repairs - Aircraft
Navigation, Landing, Housing and Parking
Hire of Aircraft
Handling Charges
Passenger Amenities
Booking Agency Commission
Communication Charges
i) Reservation System
ii) Others
Service Cost Paid to Air India Ltd (Holding Co)
TOTAL
95

2015-16

147.26
1,090.59
372.75
1,766.99
1,806.92
2,132.28
592.61
176.15

154.48
1,575.60
1,013.05
1,384.68
3.31
1,659.41
445.07
151.83

90.75
2.36
4,500.00
12,678.66

39.51
2.83
3,500.00
9,929.77

AIXL
NOTE "18" : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

2016-17

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Crew Allowances
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses
Provision for Gratuity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision for Retirement Benet
TOTAL

1,615.99
423.57
32.24
16.45
26.82
2,115.07

2015-16

1,662.10
194.83
28.57
4.26
0.31
1,890.07

NOTE "19" : FINANCE COST
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.

2.

2016-17

2015-16

Interest on :
a)

Debentures

b)

Aircraft Loans

c)

Other Loans

Other Borrowing Costs
Delayed Payment Charges to Fuel Companies
TOTAL

89.11

89.23

370.13

431.77

2,154.04

2,620.50

2,613.28

3,141.50

32.92

0.20

291.81

137.61

2,938.01

3,279.31

NOTE "20" : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.

Depreciation of Tangible Assets

2.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

2016-17

2015-16

2,959.66

2,421.23

0.01

7.04

2,959.67

2,428.27

20.90

20.90

(B)

20.90

20.90

TOTAL (A- B)

2,938.77

2,407.37

(A)
Less : Recoupment from Capital Reserve
(Refer Note 3)
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NOTE "21" : OTHER EXPENSES
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

2016-17

Travelling Expenses
i)
Crew
ii) Others
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Bank Charges
Repairs to :
i)
Buildings
ii) Others
Hire of Transport
Electricity & Heating Charges
Water Charges
Publicity and Sales Promotion
Printing and Stationery
Legal Charges
Auditors' Remuneration and Expenses
Provision for Obsolescence (Net)
Exchange Variation (Net)
Provision for Inventory Migration Surplus/Written back
Professional/Consultation Fees & Expenses
Component accounting adjustments
Miscellaneous Expenses
TOTAL

2015-16

334.48
121.86
13.99
138.41

249.98
30.93
9.79
165.64

108.64
56.06
1.77
0.07
29.05
2.92
0.57
0.81
131.15
(83.22)
49.37
26.14
683.39
61.69
1,677.15

0.85
510.73
32.13
13.64
0.25
14.72
2.11
0.95
0.54
397.79
(26.26)
12.94
59.02
1,475.76

NOTE "22" : PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (Net)

(Rupees in Million)

Particulars

2016-17

Revenue Heads
1. Passenger Revenue
2. Others

2015-16

(A)

(14.07)
(1.89)
(15.96)

(2.73)
(2.73)

(B)
TOTAL (A+B)

26.36
0.09
(0.67)
0.01
0.35
(185.22)
7.58
(17.01)
(168.51)
(184.47)

53.38
1.80
12.21
0.64
0.33
17.28
2.54
24.09
13.18
5.98
13.96
145.39
142.66

Expenditure Heads
1. Handling Charges
2. Stores and Equipments
3. Passenger Amenities
4. Crew Hotel Expenses
5. Catering on Board
6. Salaries/Staff Welfare Expenses
7. Landing, Parking and Navigation
8. Fuel (Ops.) - Aircraft
9. Rent, Rates and Taxes
10. Expenses on Computer Reservation System
11. Others (Net)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR F.Y. 2016-17
23. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
A.

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts (excluding interest and penalty
wherever applicable) and being contested to the extent ascertainable and quantiable:
(Rupees in Million)

Sr.No.

Name of Statute

Amount Outstanding (Rs.)
As on
31.03.2017

Nature of
Dues

As on
31.03.2016

Forum where
dispute is
pending

1

Finance Act, 1994
(FY 2005-17)

835.04

1114.30

Service
Tax

Commissioner
Appeals

2

Finance Act, 1994
(FY 2014-16)

24.41

24.41

Service
Tax

CESTAT

3

Customs Act, 1962
(FY 2014-16)

17.18

17.18

Customs
Duty

Commissioner of
Customs, Cochin

4

Income Tax Act,
1961 (FY 2009-17)

3.27

4.52

Income
Tax

Income
Tax Department

5

Various court cases
(FY 2014-17)

31.33

31.21

Various

Various courts

B.

Letter of Credit issued by Bank of Baroda for Exim Tranche II loan - outstanding amount as
on 31.03.2017 - Rs. 778.20 Million (Previous Year: Rs. 795.06 Million).

C.

Foreign bank guarantee issued by State Bank of India Tranche III Loan - outstanding
balance as on 31.03.2017 - Rs. 583.65 Million (Previous Year Rs.596.30 Million).

D.

Pending reconciliation of account balances with various airport operators, quantum of delayed
payment charges payable, if any, has not been provided as the amount is not ascertainable.

24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
During the year Company took the delivery of one CFM engine having serial engine No. ESN865366
amounting to Rs. 711.60 Million. There are no capital commitments as on 31 March 2017.
25. RETIREMENT BENEFITS



i.

Contributions to Dened Contribution Schemes such as Provident Fund are charged to the
Prot & Loss Account as follows:



Provident Fund Rs.32.24 Million (Previous Year Rs. 28.6 Million).

98

AIXL
ii.

The Company also provides retirement benets in the form of Gratuity and Leave
Encashment on the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet Date, carried out by
independent Actuaries, as per revised AS15 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.
a.

Privilege Leave Encashment is payable to all eligible employees at the time of
retirement up to a maximum of 84 days. Leave Encashment liability for the current
nancial year is Rs. 8.65 Million (Previous Year Rs.12.55 Million).
Net liability as per Actuarial Valuation is given in following table.

b.

Dened Benet Plan-Gratuity (Unfunded)
(Rupees in Million)

Sr.
No.
A.

Particulars

As at
31. 03. 2016

49.4

104.3

-

(61.3)

Change in Beneﬁt Obligation
l

Liability at the beginning of the year
Add / (Less):

l

Discontinuance Liability (included in
the balance sheet)

l

Interest Cost

4.0

3.4

l

Current Service Cost

7.4

5.4

l

Benet Paid

(2.2)

(4.1)

l

Actuarial (gain) / Loss on Obligations

15.4

1.7

74.0

49.4

-

-

Liability at the end of the year
B.

As at
31. 03. 2017

Fair Value of Plan Assets
l

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning
of the year
Add / (Less):

-

-

l

Expected return on Plan Assets Contributions

-

-

l

Benet Paid

-

-

l

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on Plan Assets

-

-

l

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

-

-

-

-

Total Actuarial (gain) / Loss on Plan Assets
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Sr.
No.
C.

D.

Particulars

F.

l

Expected return on Plan Asset Actuarial (gain)/
Loss on Plan Asset

-

-

l

Actual return on Plan Asset

-

-

74.0

49.4

-

-

74.0

49.4

74.0

49.4

Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
l

Liability at the end of the year

l

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

l

Difference

Expenses recognized in the Proﬁt & Loss Account
l

Current Service cost

7.4

5.4

l

Interest Cost

4.0

3.4

l

Expected Return on Plan Asset

-

-

l

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss to be recognized

15.4

1.7

Expenses recognized in the Proﬁt & Loss Account

26.8

10.5

49.4

104.3

Balance Sheet reconciliation
Opening Net Liability
Add/(Less):
l

Expense as above

26.8

10.5

l

Employer's contribution

(2.2)

(4.1)

l

Discontinuance Liability (included in
the balance sheet)

-

(61.3)

74.0

49.4

Rate of return on Plan Asset

7.52%

8.07%

Salary Escalation

5.00%

5.00%

Closing Net Liability
G.

As at
31. 03. 2016

Actual return on Plan Asset

Net amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
E.

As at
31. 03. 2017

Actuarial Assumptions for the year:
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26. In the absence of the information of supplier's status, as dened under the Interest on Delayed
Payment to Micro, Medium and Small Enterprises (MSME) Act 2006, the disclosure for unpaid
amount together with interest on delayed payments, if any, to such suppliers, could not be made
in Accounts.
27. On 26 March, 2010, the Company had issued 950 Privately Placed, Rated, Listed, Unsecured,
Taxable, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures with face value of Rs.1 Million each,
aggregating to Rs.950 Million. These bonds are guaranteed by Government of India. The Bond
issue has been rated by CRISIL as AAA (SO) and Fitch Ratings as AAA (Ind) (SO) (Exp) as on
25 November 2016. These debentures are redeemable at par on 26 March 2020. Redemption
Reserve as required under section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable since
debentures are issued prior to the Companies Act, 2013.
28. While the Company has opened independent bank accounts at various Indian/foreign locations,
there are still some transactions carried out by Air India Limited for and on behalf of the
Company. Expenditure/collections at some stations are made by Air India Limited on behalf of the
Company and same has been routed through the Current Account/Inter Company Payable and
Receivable, based on information provided by Air India Limited.
29. Cargo Revenue, Code share Revenue and Mail Revenue has been accounted based on
information received from Air India Limited. The Service tax liabilities relating to the same are
being discharged by Air India Limited. Whereas the Excess Baggage collection at few stations
are controlled and monitored by Air India Limited on behalf of the Company and the same has
been accounted based on information provided by Air India Limited.
30. INVENTORY & ROTABLES
a)

Procurement of Stores, Spares etc. for Aircraft is controlled and monitored by Air India
Limited (Holding Company).

b)

During the migration process in 2012-13, no physical verication of the inventory was
conducted and the migration was done based on sign off reports related to legacy
systems/manual records or data compiled at different locations. The documented bases for
quantities and values migrated to RAMCO system were not readily available mainly in case
of inventory of unserviceable items. The physical verication of migrated inventory has since
been completed and the discrepancies noticed are under verication and necessary
accounting adjustments are to be done for after due process. The balances in SAP with
RAMCO data base is under reconciliation. The nancial impact of the same is not
ascertainable at this stage. The data migration audit of the process is also to be conducted
and discrepancies if any would be adjusted in due course.

c)

During the Financial Year 2015-16, the Company has changed accounting policy in respect
of Repairable Spares in line with that of the parent company (Air India Ltd.). A Repairable
has been dened as an item whose operating cycle is more than 12 months and can be
continuously repaired until scrapped. In case of opening balance as on 1 April 2015 of such
repairable spares, the remaining useful life has been estimated at 5 Years and in case of
purchases of the repairable assets from 1 April 2015 onwards the useful life has been
estimated as 10 years. A total amount of Rs 54.08 Million has been provided for as
depreciation on Repairable Spares as of 31 March 2017. Similarly, an amount of Rs.173.15
Million was charged to consumption/scrappage etc has been written back.

d)

The data relating to the last ve years' movement of inventory is not available in RAMCO
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systems. Based on the data available in the legacy system, items have been identied as
non-moving and provision towards the same has been carried to the extent of Rs.2.10
Million (Previous Year Rs.21.63 Million).
e)

As conrmed by Material Management Department of Air India Ltd., physical verication of
inventories since F.Y. 2014-15 has not been conducted and necessary accounting treatment
of the discrepancies, if any, will remain undetected.

f)

The holding company has engaged outside consultants to advise on streamlining the entire
system of inventory accounting to benchmark the industry best practices and system of
ordering and controls. RAMCO software is also being upgraded suitably. The management
is taking required steps to ensure that the discrepancies noticed during migration / post
migration with regard to physical verication and valuation of inventory balances being
carried in the books of accounts and necessary accounting treatment shall be carried out at
the time of reconciliation. The precise nancial impact of the same on the nancial
statements is not ascertainable at this stage.

g)

Inventories at the year end include balances under in-house repairing jobs being carried as
“Work order Suspense Internal / External” which contains materials issued and repair charges
valued at Rs. 677.53 Million issued in respect of closed/ completed/ pre-closed/ cancelled/
initiated/ in-progress Work Orders having completion date till the year end, lying unadjusted.
These items are to be accounted for as consumption of material/ Repairs, as per the
accounting process followed in the RAMCO system. Further to aforesaid, the work order
suspense account, include expendable items of Rs. 529.55 Million which are to be charged
off to consumption on issuance. As against the above, a provision of Rs.264.78 Million has
been made in the books for the FY 2016-17 as per the existing practice and accounting for
the remaining items shall be done as and when these work-orders are closed in the RAMCO
system.

h)

Liability for Goods/Expenses for all materials received have been provided as per the values
in GRANs & Store-in-Transit statement as on 31.3.2017 as per RAMCO generated data. The
system of delay in preparation of GRANs and accounting of GRANs outside RAMCO
database and consequential effect thereon on recognition of liability is under review at
appropriate level. As the entries in SAP are being posted at summary level, vendor-wise
reconciliation of balances of advances and payable outstanding at the year-end is pending.
Accounting of exchange difference relating to transactions settled during the year and
translation of liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the year end has also been done
to the extent of available data. There are various vendor related accounts, which are being
reconciled. The accounting of FDI (Freight Duty and Incidentals) is also being streamlined
by capturing such cost in RAMCO. The precise nancial impact of the above is being
ascertained and shall be accounted for in due course.

i)

The interface between SAP and RAMCO is yet to be stabilized and hence stores
accounting data as received from RAMCO is being entered through summary level entries
in SAP. Closing balance of inventory as per the books of accounts is being reconciled with
RAMCO database and necessary adjustment shall be carried out after such reconciliation.
The delay in the interface is mainly due to the exact nature of accounting to be nalized in
view of the RAMCO system being ideally suited for MRO applications.

j)

The value of Rotables migrated to SAP is available on consolidated block basis. Post
migration to RAMCO/ SAP, the item-wise details of Rotables are being worked out as per
data generated from RAMCO. The item-wise details of Rotables as generated from RAMCO

102

AIXL
software are being compared with nancial records. Necessary reconciliation of data as per
nance records with RAMCO generated data shall be carried out in due course and
necessary accounting adjustment in that respect will be carried out thereafter.
31. As per the MOU between Air India Limited (Holding Company) and Air India Express Limited,
revenue sharing between AI and AIXL is xed at Rs. 350 Crore or 12.5% of Operating Revenue,
whichever is lower. However, during the nancial year 2016-17, additional Rs. 100 Crore was paid
to Air India Limited.
32. Pursuant to the Undertaking between erstwhile Air India Charters Ltd. (now known as Air India
Express Limited) and Air India Limited, and commercial decisions, Air India Charters Limited was
to share cost towards common facilities and services till 31 March, 2007. No cost towards
common facilities and services has been allotted to Air India Express Limited as on date.
However, in a phased manner, for the stations which have only Air India Express ight
operations, the complete station expenditure for such stations is now being debited to Air India
Express Limited. In addition, during the current year, Air India Express Limited has reimbursed an
amount of Rs. 458.09 Million to Air India Ltd. (Previous Year Rs.595.63 Million) towards the
manpower deputed to the Company. Similarly, during the year 2016-17, Air India Engineering
Services Limited has raised invoices on Air India Express Limited towards the man power cost to
the tune of Rs. 691.20 Million (Previous year Rs. 680.77 Million). Air India Express Limited has
claimed reimbursement towards engineers deputed for the similar revenue period to the tune of
Rs. 301.90 Million (Previous year Rs. 219.01 Million).
33. Claim for reimbursement of employees, lost baggage claims and crew allowances are accounted
for on Cash Basis.
34. During the FY 2012-13, the Company has migrated to three new systems viz. SAP for Financial
Accounting, Radixx for Reservation and RAMCO for Inventory Management. The Company is still
in the process of implementing and strengthening the internal controls and carrying out System/
Migration audit. The Company has carried out the Migration Audit of SAP System during the year
2013-14. The Company proposes to carry out the System Audit as suggested, through qualied
professional rms in due course of time.
35. The Company has sought conrmation of balances for most of the major receivables and
payable and in this respect parties have been requested to conrm the balances. The balances
as per certicate and as books are matched in the major vendors' cases. However, in some
cases, the parties have not responded. Wherever the balances conrmed by the parties are not in
agreement, the reconciliation is under process and effect of consequential adjustments is not
ascertainable as of now.
36. As per the consistently followed practices, the ageing of debtors is arrived based on due date of
the invoice. In certain cases, there are unmatched / identied credits which are not netted
against the debit outstanding and reconciliation of balances in the debtors account is in progress.
The impact of the above on the age of debts as due as computed in accordance with the
accounting policy of the Company could not be ascertained. Accordingly, provision for bad and
doubtful debts as per Company policy could not be ascertained and provided for in the books of
accounts.
37. SEGMENT REPORTING
i)

In terms of AS-17, the Company is engaged in airline related business, which is its primary
business segment and hence segment results are not disclosed separately. The details of
geographical area wise gross revenue earned (derived by allocating revenue to the area in
which the sale was made) are given here under:
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Particulars

2016–17

a)

Gulf

16,865.70

14,948.37

b)

India

13,600.86

12,054.69

c)

S.E. Asia

1,573.15

1,394.31

32,039.71

28,397.37

TOTAL
ii)

(Rupees in Million)
2015–16

The major revenue earning asset of the Company is aircraft eet which is exibly and
optimally deployed across its route network. There is no suitable basis for allocation of
assets and liabilities to geographical segment, consequently, area-wise assets and liabilities
are not disclosed.

38. LEASES
A.

Finance Leases
Aircraft Fleet and Equipment acquired under nance leases are treated as if they
had been purchased outright. The cost of these assets taken on lease was Rs. 46,776.79
Million (Previous year Rs. 46,254.1 Million). The future lease obligation is worked out
at Rs. 11,132.54 Million as at 31 March 2017 (Previous year Rs. 15,130.66 Million).
The breakup of total minimum lease payments due as on 31 March 2017 and their
corresponding present values are as follows:
(Rupees in Million)
Sr.
No.
a)

Particulars

c)
Notes:

As at March
31, 2016

4,005.34
7,455.07
—
11,460.41

4,018.19
11,266.34
442.36
15,726.90

3,828.83
7,307.72
—
11,132.54
327.87

3,756.93
10,934.09
439.65
15130.66
596.24

Outstanding balance of minimum lease
payments including interest there on:
Not later than one year
l
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years.
l
Later than 5 years
TOTAL
Present Value of (a) above
l
Not later than 1 year
l
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
l
Later than 5 years.
TOTAL
Finance Charges
l

b)

As at March
31, 2017

1)

Interest has been calculated at LIBOR +0.5%.

2)

As per the terms of the lease Agreement, the Holding Company – Air India Ltd. has given a
Corporate Guarantee on behalf of the Company in respect of lease of all 17 Aircraft.

104

AIXL
Arrangement for Finance Leases
The aircraft capitalized (737-800) were delivered to Air India Express Limited between
December 2006 to December 2009. 85% of aircraft nancing package provided by the nancial
institutions is guaranteed by US Exim which in turn is guaranteed through a GOI guarantee
in favor of US Exim. The balance 15% is arranged through Commercial loans. Under the
nancing arrangement with US Exim the Company has to form a Special Purpose Vehicle
Company (SPV Company) which would be located in a tax free jurisdiction which would
own the asset. A two tier structure was therefore put in place whereby the head lessor
(SPV Company) was situated in Delaware which could lease the aircraft to an Irish SPV
(established in order to make the transaction tax neutral). Since the issue of settling the
GOI guarantee took considerable time, the Company in the mean while had to take delivery
of the aircraft in its books through a temporary nancing arrangement. When the US Exim
guaranteed loan was in place it was decided to cover all the delivered aircraft in the eet
up to that point by transferring the assets to the SPV Company based in Delaware and
lease it again through the Irish SPV. There was as such, no actual sale to the SPV
Company but this had to be done to complete and comply with the formalities of putting
together a nancial arrangement which was guaranteed through the US Exim. All costs
related to the acquisition of the aircraft including the setting up of the SPV Companies have
been capitalized in the books since it pertained to the acquisition of the aircraft. The lease
has been structured as a nancial lease so that the ownership in the aircraft would pass on
to Air India Express Limited at the end of the lease period. In the meanwhile, i.e. the time
from when the asset was initially acquired by the Company in its books to the date the
asset was transferred to the SPV Company certain installments in the form of principal and
interest fell due which were paid off. Thus, there was no impairment loss suffered by the
Company in this transaction.
B.

Operating Leases
Aircraft
The Company has taken six Aircraft on non-cancelable operating lease for a period of 8
years. The future minimum lease rental payment as on 31 March, 2017 is as under: (Rupees in Million)
Details

2016-17

2015-16

Payable within 1 year

1,704.07

297.00

Payable later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

8,662.35

1,188.10

Later than 5 years

2,698.11

891.10

13,064.53

2,376.20

TOTAL

Lease rental and Maintenance Reserve recognized in the Prot and Loss Account is
Rs.1,806.92 Million (Previous Year Rs. 3.3 Million).
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39. REDELIVERY OF LEASED AIRCRAFT
As per Accounting Standard 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
Company has provided for cost of redelivery of Aircraft.
The Company in its eet has 6 Leased B 737-800 Aircraft covering the lease term of 8 years. As
per the terms of the lease agreements, the aircrafts have to be redelivered to the lessor at the
end of the lease period as per the redelivery conditions stipulated. Such redelivery conditions
would entail costs for technical inspection, maintenance checks, repainting costs and cost of
ferrying the aircraft to the locations stipulated in the agreement. The Company therefore provides
for such redelivery expenses, as contractually agreed, on estimate basis, in proportion to the
expired lease period.


(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

2016-17

2015-16

–

–

6.38

–

Less: Amounts used during the year

–

–

Less: Amounts reversed during the year

–

–

6.38

–

Opening Balance
Add: Additional Provisions during the year

Closing Balance

The Cash outow out of above provisions as per the current terms under the lease agreement is
expected as under :
Year

2016-17

2015-16

No. of
Aircraft

Amount
(Rs. in Million)

No. of
Aircraft

Amount
(Rs. in Million)

2016-17

–

–

–

–

2017-23

–

–

–

–

2023-24

1

1.54

–

–

2024-25

5

4.84

–

–

40. DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS
During the year, Company has identied signicant components in the assets class Engine and
the depreciation has been charged as per the useful life of respective components.
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard 18 (AS18) "Related Party Disclosures" issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, are given below:
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A.

Related Party : Air India Ltd. - Parent Company

B.

Board of Directors

C.

D.

Sr. No.

Name of Director

Designation

Remark

1.

Shri Ashwani Lohani

Chairman

2.

Dr. Shefali Juneja

Director

Upto 11 May 2017

3.

Smt. Puja Jindal

Director

Upto 07 April 2016

4.

Shri Angshumali Rastogi

Director

w.e.f 12 May 2017

5.

Shri K V Unnikrishnan

Director

w.e.f 12 May 2017

6.

Shri Vinod Hejmadi

Director

Key Managerial Personnel
Sr. No.

Name of Key Managerial Personnel

Designation

1.

Shri K. Shyam Sundar

Chief Executive Ofcer

2.

Shri M. Manoharan

Chief Financial Ofcer

3.

Smt. Aditi Khandekar

Company Secretary

Related Party Transactions
i.

There are no transactions with Key Managerial Personnel except remuneration and
perquisites to Chief Executive Ofcer. During the year 2016-17, an amount of Rs. 3
Million has been paid as remuneration to Chief Executive Ofcer.

ii.

The Holding Company and its other subsidiaries are State Controlled enterprise as
dened under AS-18 (Para 9) and hence transactions undertaken by the Company with
them do not fall within the denition of related party transactions.

iii.

Transactions such as providing airline related services in the normal course of airline
business are not included above.

iv.

No Loans or Credit Transactions Were Outstanding with Directors or Ofcers of the
Company or their relatives at the end of the year.
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42. Deferred Tax Asset (Liability), as worked out by the Management is as under:
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

As on 31 Mar'17

As on 31 Mar'16

3622.16

973.94

Disallowances as per I.T. Act' 61 (Net)

2530.78

193.14

Loss (Refer Note below)

1091.38

780.80

Total DTA

3622.16

973.94

Nil

Nil

Deferred Tax Liability: (DTL)
Depreciation
Deferred Tax Assets: (DTA)

Net DTA/(DTL)

Note : Losses do not include the Business Losses for more than 8 years.
43. During the FY 2012-13, Air India Limited has billed the Company towards reimbursement of cost
along with service tax of Rs.71.9 Million, which has been contested by the Company. Necessary
action will be taken after conclusion of discussion with the holding company.
44. Pending nal reconciliation with vendors, an amount of Rs.146.56 Million has been paid as 'On
Account Payment' which has been shown under 'Advance to Supplier' and corresponding liability
of same has been shown under respective Vendor Liability.
45. The following balances need to be conrmed and reconciled and adjusted for in the books:
(Rupees in Million)
Account Code

Short Text

Debit Balance

Credit Balance

1109001000

AP Liability

51.14

-

1110003151

TDS 194 Clearing-Old

43.70

-

2212001505

Unidentied Receipt

-

51.25

2214005010

TDS – India

15.64

-

2214002280

Inter Station Account**

-

254.83

1110003110

TDS 194 C – Payable

-

18.11

1110003115

TDS 194 I – Payable

-

19.46

1110003125

TDS 194 J – Payable

-

124.69

110.48

468.34

TOTAL

108

AIXL
**Inter Station account includes the amounts related to certain transactions which could not be specically
identied as such.
The impact on Prot & Loss Account on such reconciliation/conrmation, if any, has not been
ascertained. However, the Management doesn't expect any material adjustment on receipt of
conrmation/reconciliation of such balances.
46. EARNING PER SHARE:
(Rupees in Million except share data)
Details

As at 31.03.17

As at 31.03.16

2,967.45

3,616.82

–

–

2,967.45

3,616.82

780,00,000

780,00,000

Before Extraordinary items (Rs. Per Share)

38.04

46.37

After Extra Ordinary items (Rs. Per Share)

38.04

46.37

Prot / (Loss) after tax & before Extra – ordinary items
LESS: Extra Ordinary items
Prot/ (Loss) after tax & extra ordinary items
Weighted Average no. of equity shares
EPS Basic & Diluted

47. REMUNERATION TO STATUTORY AUDITORS:
The details of the audit fees and out of pocket expenses for the year 2016-17 are as under:
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

2016-17

2015-16

Audit Fees for the year (Provision)

0.63

0.47

Out of Pocket Expenses

0.06

0.06

0.69

0.53

Total

48. In the opinion of the management, the year end balances of Current Assets, Current Liabilities,
Loans and advances are expected to realize/arise in the ordinary course of business.
49. As per the notication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, dated 4
September 2015, and as the consent given by the Board with regard to non-disclosure of
information referred in paragraph 5(viii) (a) to (e), except (d) of Part II, Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, the same is not applicable to Company.
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50. There is no remittance during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend.
51. The Company has not been able to provide the details of the Specied Bank Notes (SBN) of old
500 / 1000 Rupee currency notes during the demonetization period (8 November 2016 to 30
December 2016) due to huge volume of transactions held at various online network stations (City
booking ofces and Airport locations).
52. GOING CONCERN:
During the current nancial year also, the EBIDTA of the Airlines has improved signicantly and
due to the various measures taken, the Company's operational and nancial position has also
improved substantially. The Company has recorded a net prot of Rs. 296.75 Crore during the FY
2016-17. The Airline had achieved a net prot of Rs.362 Crore during the previous year (FY
2015-16).
The Company has recorded Operating prot during the last 4 years in a row. Further, the Airline
has been successful in achieving Cash prot for the past 3 years and net prot for 2 years
including the current scal also the Airline has budgeted a net prot of Rs. 208.30 Crore in FY
2017-18.
As part of the conscious strategy to achieve self-reliance in key operational areas such as
Operations, Flight safety, Training and Engineering.
The following proposals have also been completed during the current ﬁscal:
l

Code share arrangement with parent company

l

Special “Buy on Board” customized menu for the passengers and available for sale online.

l

Average utilization of more than 12 hours per aircraft per day.

l

Introduction of PayZapp and PayTM facilities for the esteemed customers.

l

Replacement of old seat and provision of In-seat power on 17 Owned B 737 – 800 NG.

Besides the above,
l

The Company has rmed up the arrangement of taking 2 more B737-800 NG aircraft on Dry
lease during the 2017-18. With the induction of 2 additional Aircraft the eet size of the
Airline would be increased from 23 to 25. The Airline is also in the process of developing
the Medium to Long term eet and network vision in order to be able to capitalize on the
Market opportunities.

l

The Company has also surpassed the Operating Revenue by 14.18% compared to the
previous year.

l

The Company has achieved Pan-India footprint by launching operations on many new
routes from Northern parts of India. The results achieved on these routes have been
promising.

l

The Company has also obtained the Credit rating through the External Agency and the
Airline is graded as “A3+”. The rating would help the Airline to reduce the interest cost on
the WCDL substantially.
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l

The Airline has also achieved the distinction of “IOSA certication” which serves as a global
industry benchmarks for safety and quality of services.

53. As the Revenue Reconciliation/Accounting System is outsourced to an Outside Agency, the
Company's accounts are getting recorded on the information/ periodical Trial Balances submitted
by them. The required subsidiary ledgers are available with the Outsourced Agency. The Agency
has provided the certicate as prescribed under SA 3402 of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) for FY 2016-17.
54. UNHEDGED FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE
(Rupees in Million)
Particulars

Currency


Current/ Non-Current Assets









As at 31-Mar-17

As at 31-Mar-16

Amount in
Foreign
Currency

Amount

Amount in
Foreign
Currency

Amount

AED

1,457.72

23,857.53

1,097.13

17,395.06

BHD

3.89

688.57

2.73

485.46

CAD

0.00

0.02

–

–

KWD

1.91

396.27

1.49

304.60



LKR

417.90

182.24

417.90

182.24



MYR

29.04

468.79

24.84

402.45



OMR

436.23

1,925.68

433.26

1,414.77

QAR

98.72

1,702.42

73.16

1,243.55



SAR

69.06

1,182.55

39.62

665.56



SGD

64.10

2,795.00

51.12

2,185.51



THB

19.64

28.97

19.64

28.97

Current / Non-Current

BDT

90.25

57.20

52.67

24.96

Liabilities** (excluding items

EUR

0.40

29.05

0.01

0.76

mentioned below)

GBP

0.02

1.34

0.01

1.34

LKR

4.61

1.43

4.61

1.43

THB

0.82

0.99

0.82

0.99

Current/ Non-Current Assets
















USD

629.27

36,051.80

530.40

29,391.44



Outstanding Finance
Lease Liability

USD

17.17

11,132.54

228.37

15,130.66



Secured Loans from
bank and others

USD

69.79

4,525.99

19.68

1,303.70



Provision for Redelivery
Cost

USD

0.10

6.38

–

–
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**Vendor balances in foreign currency in RAMCO (Inventory Management System) is managed
by parent company (Air India Ltd.) and in absence of adequate information, the same is not
included in the above gures.
55. INTEREST ON DELAYED PAYMENT TO FUEL COMPANIES
During the year delayed payment charges paid/payable to Oil companies amounting to Rs. 291.81
Million (Previous Year Rs. 137.61 Million) has been included under "Finance Cost". Liability
towards TDS on such payment has not been recognized as per the accounting policy of the
Company.
56. Previous Year's gures have been regrouped / re- classied wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year's classication / disclosure.

Signatures to Notes to Financial Statements for FY 2016-17 which form part of Balance Sheet and
Prot and Loss Account.
For and on behalf of
Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 105215W / W100057
Sd/Suhrud G. Lele
Partner
M.No. 121162

For and on behalf of the Board
Sd/Sd/Angshumali Rastogi
Ashwani Lohani
Chairman
Director

Sd/Vinod Hejmadi
Director

Sd/K.Shyam Sundar
Chief Executive Ofcer

Sd/Aditi Khandekar
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date : 28 June 2017
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Sd/M.Manoharan
Chief Financial Ofcer

